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The PENACOOK FIBRE COMPANY is celebrating its 50th year of manufacturingfiber-
board for the shoe industry. Founded in 1940 by John Allen, continued in later years by
Roland Allen. Rick Allen, third generation member of the family, now managers the

day-to-day operation.



Selectmen's Office

17 High Street, Boscawen, NH 03303; Phone:

796-2426; Office Hours: Monday-Friday 8:00

a.m. -5:00 p.m.

David R. McKerley, Jr.; Thomas Danko;
Douglas R. Supry, Chairman; Sherlene B.

Fisher, Adm. Assist.; Betsy Keenan, Secretary.

Selectmen's Meetings are held at 17 High St.

on 2nd and 4th Wednesday of each month at

4:00 p.m.

Zoning Board of Adjustment
16 High Street, Boscawen, NH 03303
Kenneth Marshall, Chairman

Robert Knowlton, Zoning Officer; Phone:
796-2105; Office Phone: 796-2478; Pam
Davis, Secretary; 796-2426

Zoning Board Meetings are held at 16 High
St., on 4th Tuesday of each month at 7:30

p.m.

Planning Board
16 High Street, Boscawen, NH 03303
Ed Brodeur, Chairman; Phone: 753-4584,

7:00 p.m. -9:00 p.m.; Office Phone: 796-2478;

Pam Davis, Secretary; 796-2426.

Planning Board Meetings are held at 16

High St. on 2nd Tuesday of each month at

7:00 p.m.

Treasurer-Bookkeeper

Patricia Knight; Office Phone: 796-2343

Tax Collector

Phyllis Hewey, 17 High Street, Boscawen, NH
03303; Phone: 796-2426; Office Hours: Tues-

day, Wednesday & Thursday 8:30 a.m. -12:30
p.m., 1:00 p.m. -5:00 p.m.

Town Clerk

Barbara Holmes, 17 High Street, Boscawen,
NH 03303; Phone: 796-2426; Office Hours:

Tuesday, Wednesday & Thursday 8:30
a.m. -12:30 p.m., 1:00 p.m. -5:00 p.m.

Penacook-Boscawen Water Precinct

9 Woodbury Lane, Boscawen, NH 03303;
Phone: 796-2206; Teddie Hooper, Secretary;

Office Hours: Wednesday 9:00 a.m.- 1:00 p.m.

Public Works Director

Richard Hollins, 13 Woodbury Lane,
Boscawen, NH 03303; Phone: 796-2207

Boscawen Sanitary Landfill

Corn Hill Road; Hours: Wednesday & Satur-

day 7:30 a.m. -3:30 p.m. (Dump sticker

required—obtained from Town Clerk)

Police Department
Mark Pepler, Chief, 19 High Street,

Boscawen, NH 03303; Norma Houston,
Secretary; Phone: 796-2277 (Emergency)

Health Officer

John Dagata; Phone 796-2609

Fire Department
Roland "Joe" Bardett, Chief, 17 High Street,

Boscawen, NH 03303
Burning Permits—Contact: Joe Bartlett,

796-2157; Ray Fisher, 796-2498

Town Moderator
Rick A. Trombly

Supervisors of the Checklist

Robert Kenevel, Chairman; William Bevans;
Carl Glover, Sr.

Public Libraries

Main Library: Tuesday, 2:30-5:00 p.m.;
Thursday, 3:00-7:00 p.m.

Branch Library: Monday, 3:30-6:30 p.m.,
Wednesday, 3:30-7:00 p.m.

Boscawen Congregational Church
Dawn Berry, Minister, 12 High Street,

Boscawen, NH 03303; Phone: 796-2565

Post Office

228 King Street, Boscawen, NH 03303
Postmistress: Laura Lane

Hours: Monday-Friday, 10:00 a.m. -12:00
Noon & 3:30 p.m. -5:30 p.m.; Saturday, 11:00

a.m. -1:00 p.m.

Life Safety Code Officer

Harold Hamilton; Phone: 753-9451 (after 5:00

p.m.)

Genealogical/Historical Information

Robert Kenevel, 796-2546; Dorothy Sanborn,
796-2582 (Summer Residence) 796-2211
(Winter Residence); Henrietta Kenney,
796-2164; Virginia Colby, 225-3122; Ronald
Reed, President, Boscawen Historical Society

796-2236

Conservation Commission
Charles Jaworski, Chairman

Conservation Commission Meeting held 4th

Thursday of each month at 16 High St.,

Boscawen, NH 03303 at 7:30 p.m.

Town Meetings

Held 2nd Tuesday of March, Boscawen Town
Hall.

EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBERS
Police — 796-2277

Fire/Rescue 1-225-3355
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IN MEMORIAM

ROGER C. SANBORN

June 16, 1914 — November 19, 1989

Boscawen Selectman 1955 — 1975

Boscawen Planning Board 1963 — 1972, 1974 —
Boscawen Fire Department 1940 — 1971

Boscawen Town Clerk 1944 — 1945

Daniel Webster Grange Fifty Year Member
Outstanding Devotion to the Community

1975

Roger C. Sanborn owned and operated one of the few remaining dairy

farms in Boscawen. He found time to serve the Town for many years in

several capacities as listed above. We are pleased to dedicate this issue to

his memory.





IN MEMORIAM

JOSEPH B. BOWES

April 10, 1910 — January 10, 1990

Boscawen Selectman 1981 — 1983

Boscawen Library Trustee 1978 — 1989
Boscawen Representative to General Court 1981 — 1986

Ezekiel Webster Grange 1981 — 1990
Outstanding Devotion to the Community

Joseph B. Bowes spent the last fifteen years of his life in Boscawen. After

moving here, he immediately plunged into several activities, having
special interest in the library and Grange. He also represented the Town
for several years in the State Legislature.
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TOWN OFFICERS 1989

MODERATOR Rick Trombly

SELECTMEN
Douglas R. Supry, Chairman Term expires 1990

David R. McKerley Jr Term expires 1990

*Sandra E. Brodeur Term expires 1991

Thomas Danko Term expires 1992

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT Sherlene B. Fisher

SELECTMEN'S SECRETARY Betsy Keenan

TOWN CLERK Barbara Holmes 1989

TREASURER Patricia Knight 1989

COLLECTOR OF TAXES Phyllis Hewey

OVERSEERS OF THE CHECKLIST
William R. Bevans Robert C. Keneval Carl S. Clover

POLICE DEPARTMENT
Chief Mark Pepler Special Officer Richard Doucet

* Officer Mark Barton Special Officer George Cushman
Officer David Croft Special Officer Robert Bunnell

* Officer Kevin Roy School Crossing Guard—Vernon Merchant

Police Department Secretary—Elizabeth N. Houston

HEALTH OFFICER r John Dagata

LIFE SAFETY OFFICER Harold Hamilton

LIBRARY TRUSTEES
Dorothy Sanborn Term expires 1990

Alma Dean Term expires 1990

Lucile Carlson, Chairman Term expires 1991

Joseph Bowes Term expires 1991

Mary Weeks Term expires 1992

FOREST FIRE WARDEN Roland Bartlett-Appointed

DEPUTY FIRE WARDENS
Ray Fisher Craig Nixon

Mark Bailey Leonard Miner Sr.

Robert York Harold Hamilton
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OFFICIAL WEIGHERS
Roger C. Sanborn Fred Supry
Charles Scheys Agnes M. Marshall

Robert A. Davis

SURVEYORS OF WOOD AND LUMBER
Charles Brown William Bailey, Jr. Fred Egounis

FENCE VIEWERS
Robert Kenevel Douglas R. Supry

TRUSTEES OF TRUST FUNDS
Kathleen Jaworski Doris Silver, Treasurer Cynthia Houston

BUDGET COMMITTEE
Ronald Reed, Chairman Term expires 1990
Robert Kenevel Term expires 1990
William Harmon Term expires 1991

Janet Moore Term expires 1991

William Bevans Term expires 1992

James F. Colby Term expires 1992

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR Richard Hollins—Appointed

SEXTON OF CEMETERIES Richard Hollins—Appointed

TRAILER PARK INSPECTOR Robert Knowlton

CIVIL DEFENSE DIRECTOR Earl Houston

PLANNING BOARD
Douglas R. Supry ^ Member ex-officio

Rebecca Gauthier Term expires May 3, 1990
Ronald Butler Term expires May 6, 1991
Edward Brodeur, Chairman Term expires May 6, 1991
*Gene Bushey Term expires May 6, 1991

Joy Sloane
.^ Term expires April 14, 1992

+ Robert Knowlton Term expires May 31, 1992

Alternates

*Cynthia Houston Term expires April 14, 1989
*Sally Allard Term expires April 14, 1989
*Doreen Sumner Term expires April 14, 1989

Jean Drew Term expires April 17, 1992
Katherine Schneider Term expires September 13, 1992
Planning Board Secretary Pamela Davis

+ Town Representative to the Central New Hampshire Regional Plan-

ning Commission
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ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
*Claudia Damon, Chairman Term expires April 6, 1989

Richard Rineer Term expires May 9, 1990

Roger Sanborn Term expires May 6, 1991

Edward Downer Term expires April 6, 1992

+ Kenneth Marshall, Chairman Term expires April 17, 1992

John Domonic Term expires October 18, 1992

Alternates

Marie Sherman Term expires April 16, 1990

Carl Woodard Term expires April 17, 1990

Dana Smith Term expires May 9, 1990

Frederick Egounis Term expires May 6, 1991

Joan Heath Term expires October 18, 1992

Zoning Board Secretary Pam Davis

ZONING OFFICER Robert Knowlton

PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE
Richard Hollins Term expires April 22, 1990

Mark Pepler Term expires April 22, 1990

James Moore Term expires May 6, 1990

Derek Sawyer Term expires August 31, 1991

Susan Earnshaw Term expires August 31, 1991

Louise McLaughlin, Chairman Term expires October 28, 1991

Thomas Danko Member ex-officio

CONSERVATION COMMISSION
Ronald Butler Term expires 1990

Edward Damon Term expires 1990

Charles Jaworski, Chairman Term expires 1990

Martha Crete Term expires 1990

*Dean Toulas Term expires 1991

Charles Neibling Term expires 1991

Rene Bollengier, Jr Term expires 1992

Douglas Hartford Term expires 1992

Alternates

Todd West Temporary
Gregory Homan Temporary
Roger Carlson Temporary

POLICE COMMISSION
Donald F. Welcome Term expires 1992

John Lemeris Term expires 1990

John Hollins Term expires 1990

Claire Clarke, Chairman Term expires 1991

Norma Heinz Term expires 1991

Thomas Danko Member ex-officio
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BOSCAWEN CEMETERY COMMISSION

Theodore Houston, Jr Term expires 5/31/92

Viola Knowlton Term expires 5/31/90

Donald F. Welcome Term expires 5/31/91

BOSCAWEN'S REPRESENTATIVES TO GENERAL COURT

Rick A. Trombly Elizabeth Millard

7 Park Street ' 137 Water Street

Boscawen, NH 03303 Boscawen, NH 03303
753-9059 796-2231
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BOSCAWEN FIRE DEPARTMENT

CHIEF
Roland D. Bartlett

DEPUTY CHIEFS
Robert York Ray R. Fisher

Leonard Miner, Sr.

Harold Hamilton
Robert Welcome, Jr.

Ronald McDaniels
Francis O'Keefe

John Ayers

Dix Bailey

Everett Blaise

*Bernie Cornell

Daniel Cornell

James Cornell

Fredrick Egounis

Michael Fisher

John French

Richard Gilman
Carl S. Clover, Jr.

Carlos Goncalves

Captains

Lieutenants

Engineers

Clerks

Treasurers

Craig Nixon
Mark Bailey

Jack Pillsbury

Peter Kenney
Lester Colby

Timothy Kenney
Reginald LaClair

Michael Littlefield

Dawn Locke
Paul O'Keefe

*Michael Perry

Alan Perkins

EricPouliot

*Vicki Riel

Robert Rispoli

Robert Welcome, Jr.

Thomas Welcome
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The State of New Hampshire

TOWN WARRANT

THE POLLS WILL BE OPEN FROM 10:00 A.M. TO 7:00 P.M.

To the Inhabitants of the Town of Boscawen in the County of Merri-

mack in said State, quaUfied to vote in Town Affairs:

You are hereby notified to meet at the Town Hall in said Boscawen on
Tuesday, the Thirteenth day of March, next at Ten of the clock in the

forenoon, to act upon the following subjects:

1. To choose all necessary Town Officers for the year ensuing.

2. To raise such sums of money as may be necessary to defray town
charges for the ensuing year and make appropriations of the same.

3. To see if the Town will vote to adopt the provisions of RSA 72:28,

V and VI for an optional veterans' exemption and an expanded qualifying

war service for veterans seeking the exemption. The optional veterans'

exemption is $100, rather than $50.

4. To see if the Town will vote to adopt the provisions of RSA 72:35,

IV for an optional property tax exemption on residential property for a

service-connected total disabilitv. The optional disability exemption is

$1,400 rather than $700.

5. To see if the Town will vote to discontinue the Capital Reserve

Sewer Fund created in 1955. Said funds, with accumulated interest to

date of withdrawal, to be transferred to the Town's General Fund.

6. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to negotiate

an agreement to acquire ten ± (10) acres of land adjacent to the landfill to

be used in conjunction with the transfer station at a cost not to exceed
forty thousand dollars ($40,000.00). Money to be taken from the transfer

station bond. (2/3 ballot vote)

7. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a sum not to

exceed eleven thousand dollars ($11,000.00) for the purchase of a

highway sander and wing plow for the Highway Department.

8. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate three thou-

sand dollars ($3,000.00) to establish a Drug Fund to be used by the Police

Department for the purchase of surveillance equipment and a small PC
computer to assist in the keeping of records.

9. To see if the Town will vote to establish a Capital Reserve Fund
under the provisions of RSA 35: 1 for the purpose of refurbishing or replac-

ing the 1975 Mack Fire Truck and to raise and appropriate the sum of

$35,000 to be placed in this fund.
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10. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a sum not to

exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000.00) for the construction of a handi-

capped ramp and renovations related to the Town Office. This project is

state mandated.

11. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a sum not to

exceed eighteen thousand dollars ($18,000.00) for the first phase of

remapping the Town. Total cost of forty-five thousand dollars

($45,000.00) to be budgeted over a three year period, with $18,000 the

first year, $15,750 the second year and the balance of $11,250 the third

year.

12. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a sum not to

exceed twelve thousand five hundred dollars ($12,500.00) to help support

the Penacook Rescue Squad for its emergency medical services and rescue

operations in Town.

13. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a sum not to

exceed six thousand three hundred dollars ($6,300.00) for the services of

the Concord Regional Visiting Nursing Association.

14. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a sum not to

exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000.00) toward the operating expenses

of the Penacook Centers — two thousand five hundred ($2,500.00) for the

Youth Center and five hundred dollars ($500.00) for the Senior Center.

15. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a sum not to

exceed three thousand one hundred and ninety nine dollars ($3,199.00)

for the services to low income residents of Roscawen through the Concord
Area Center Community Action Program, Relknap-Merrimack Counties,

Inc.

16. To see if the Town will vote to deposit all revenues from the Land
Use Change Tax (RSA 79-A) in a conservation fund established in accor-

dance wtih RSA 36-A: 25, II. These funds shall be non-lapsing, and shall

be under the custody of the town treasurer. Monies in the conservation

fund shall only be expended by a majority vote of the Conservation Com-
mission for purpose of the conservation of natural resources in the Town
of Roscawen. (Ry petition).

17. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to allow the

local snowmobile clubs the use of the Roscawen-Canterbury bridge for a

multi-use winter recreational trail, as long as the clubs can show that in-

surance coverage would protect the Town in the event of a lawsuit. (The

structure would be a bridge within a bridge). The bridge would be closed

to wheeled vehicles and padlocked during the non-winter seasons. (Ry

petition)

.

18. To see if the Town will vote to discontinue that section of Weir
Road that lies within the Town Forest.
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19. To see if the Town will vote to empower the Selectmen to borrow

such sums of money as may be necessary to meet current expenses of the

Town until the taxes are paid to the Treasurer.

20. To see if the Town will vote to give the Selectmen authority to

transfer or sell property taken by the town in default of Redemption from

the Tax Lien or otherwise acquired and such sale to be at public auction

with the Selectmen reserving the right to accept or reject any or all bids.

21. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to make
application for and to accept and to expend on behalf of the Town any

and all advances, grants, or other funds for Town purposes which may
now or hereinafter be forthcoming from the U.S.A. or the State of New
Hampshire or any Federal or State Agency.

22. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to accept

and to expend on behalf of the Town private gifts and contributions for

Town purposes.

23. To transact any other business which may legally come before this

meeting.

Given under our hands and seal, this 23rd day of February, in the year

of our Lord nineteen hundred and ninety.

DOUGLAS R. SUPRY Selectmen

THOMAS DANKO of

DAVID R. McKERLEY Boscawen

A true copy of Warrant — Attest:

DOUGLAS R. SUPRY Selectmen

THOMAS DANKO of

DAVID R. McKERLEY Boscawen

13th March, 1990

We hereby certify that we gave notice to the inhabitants within named,
to meet at time and place and for the purpose within mentioned, by
posting up an attested copy of the within Warrant at the place of meeting

within named, and a like attested copy at Town Hall and Carey's Market
being a public place in said Town, on the 23rd day of February, 1990.

DOUGLAS R. SUPRY Selectmen

THOMAS DANKO of

DAVID R. McKERLEY Boscawen
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CONCORD REGIONAL VISITING NURSE ASSOCIATION

The Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association continues to offer three

major health services to the residents of Boscawen: Home Care, Hospice,

and Health Promotion.

Home Care Services respond to the health care needs of those patients

with acute or chronic illnesses that require skilled professional and para-

professional care so they may return to or remain in their homes.

Emphasis is on promoting independence and maximum functioning of the

patient within the least restrictive setting.

Hospice Services provide professional and paraprofessional services to

the terminally ill patient with a limited life expectancy. The goal is to

enhance the quality of the patient's remaining life by helping he/she

remain at home in comfort and dignity. Emphasis is on pain and
symptom management and skilled intervention to meet the patient's

special physical and emotional needs. This is the only certified Medicare

Hospice Program in New Hampshire.

Health Promotion Services focus on the low and marginal income
families and individuals to prevent illness by professional assessment and
screening for health risks and needs, by early intervention to prevent,

eliminate, or minimize the impact of illness and/or disability, and by
anticipatory guidance and health teaching. Services rendered in the clinic

setting are: child health, family planning, sexually transmitted disease,

adult screening, immunizations, and HIV testing and counseling. Home
visits are made in crisis situations or when needed health care cannot be

given in the clinic. Senior Health services are provided at congregate

housing sites. Professional and paraprofessional hourly home services are

provided on a private fee-for-service basis. Emphasis is on promoting

healthy children, families, and individuals through early intervention

and health teaching.

Health Education and Instruction is part of each home visit or clinic

visit.

Anyone in Boscawen may request service; patient, doctor, health facil-

ity, pastor, friend or neighbor. All requests are answered, but continuing

home care will only be provided with a physician's order.

A call to the Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association (224-4093)

between the hours of 8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m. seven days a week is all that is

necessary to start services or make inquiries. A Hospice nurse is on call

(224-4093) 4:00 p.m. - 8:00 a.m. daily.

Federal regulations specify a charge is applicable to all visits. Fees are

scaled for that person without a health plan who is unable to pay the full

charge. However, for fee scaling, federal regulations require a financial

statement be completed by the patient or responsible person. Town
monies subsidize those visits that are scaled or that no fee is collectible.

This agency is certified as a Medicare/Medicaid Provider, licensed by

the State of NH and is a member agency of the United Way of Merrimack
County.

Total visits made during the year October 1, 1988 through September

30,1989: No. of Clients Visits

Home Care 27 557

Hospice 3 100

Health Promotion 36 162

12 Senior Health Clinics
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1990 BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF BOSCAWEN
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SOURCES OF REVENUE
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SELECTMEN'S REPORT

The major accomplishment of 1989 was the near completion of the

transfer station in late December. Originally scheduled to be in operation

when the trash-to-energy plant opened in September, the station was held

up by delays at both the state and local level. A final coat of paving

remains to be applied in early spring. Once this is done, we plan to locate

recycling facilities to start removing glass, metal cans, paper and card-

board from the waste stream.

Now that the transfer station is in operation, the state is requiring us to

start planning a permanent closure of the old landfill. This will involve

shaping the sides to shed rainfall and installing a plastic cover. We are

hopeful to be able to spread this process over three years and to use

unspent funds from the transfer station bond.

Selectwoman Sandra Broduer resigned in mid-year for personal and
business reasons. David R. McKerley Jr. was appointed by the remaining

selectmen to fill out the year.

An especially difficult chore to try to handle was the 10 % cut that was
voted at the 1989 Town Meeting. Although we were directed by town
meeting voters to make cuts wherever we felt, the Department of Revenue
Administration dictated that the cuts be made evenly across all depart-

ments. Therefore, on paper at least, even the insurance (health, property,

liability, payroll) were cut. We knew what those annual costs were going

to be and it did turn out that insurance was a large item in the red by
year's end. We were and still are committed to retaining the full-time

employees and their salaries. A comparison of costs and numbers of

employees would show that we are providing services much more effi-

ciently and economically than neighboring communities.

As many of you have noticed over the last several months, a lot of

changes have taken place at the rear of the Torrent Fire Station. When
completed, this very attractive addition will house the Penacook Rescue

Squad, which for many years has provided the town with ambulance and
rescue services.

Lengthy discussion with the leaders of the squad has resulted in an

agreement that should benefit both parties far into the future. This will be

a town building and in the unlikely event that the Rescue Squad should

need to disband, the town could utilize the area.

The one outstanding and very significant aspect to be recognized about

this new building is that no tax dollars were raised for this effort; it was
through the very generous donations of labor and materials from local

businesses and professional persons and with many very special gifts of

money. We join the Rescue Squad in thanking each of you for your

efforts, and your fine sense of community.
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STATEMENT OF APPROPRIATIONS

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Election and Registration expenses $ 4,761

Cemeteries 4,438

General Government Buildings 5,429

Planning and Zoning 14,117

Legal Expenses 8,617

Advertising and Regional Association 5,170

Financial Administration 37,826

Central Administration 57,439

Public Safety

Police Department 131,416

Fire Department 38,755

Civil Defense 2,783

Safety Code Officer 1,913

Highways, Street, Bridges

Town Maintenance 133,484

General Highway Department Expenses 2,000

Street Lighting 8,772

Sanitation

Solid Waste Disposal 74,972

Solid Waste Management Plan (Art. #12) 460

Health
Health Department 1,680

Animal Control 215

Vital Statistics 86

Hazardous Household Waste (Art. #11) 1,860

VNA (Art. #8) 6,000

Penacook Rescue Squad (Art. #7) 8,500

Welfare
General Assistance 12,625

Community Action Program (Art. #10) 3,047

Culture and Recreation

Library .' 10,143

Parks and Recreation 9,178

Patriotic Purposes 1,551

Conservation Commission 616

Penacook Community Ctrs. (Art. #9) 3,000

Debt Service

Principal of Long-Term Bonds & Notes 80,000

Interest Expense — Long-Term Bonds & Notes 35,640

Interest Expense— Tax Anticipation Notes 25,852

Capital Outlav
Cruiser — Police Dept. (Art. #6) 15,000

Chain Link Fence — Beaver Dam Cemetery (Art. #4) 1,400

Fire Truck (Art. #5) 144,000

Town Beautification (Art. #13) 250



22 TOWN OF BOSCAWEN

Miscellaneous

Municipal Sewer Department 190,800
FICA, Retirement & Pension Contributions 22,405
Insurance 73,248

Unemployment Compensation 779

Total Appropriations $1,180,227

SOURCES OF REVENUE
Taxes

Resident Taxes $ 19,320

National Bank Stock Taxes 42

Yield Taxes 7,500

Interest and Penalties on Taxes 14,000

Land Use Change Tax 1,000

Intergovernmental Revenues — State

Shared Revenue — Block Grant 48,375

Highway Block Grant 44,714

Railroad Tax 3

Reimb. a/c State-Federal Forest Land 382

McKinney Welfare Grant 1,500

Licenses and Permits

Motor Vehicle Permit Fees 225,000

Dog Licenses 1,030

Business Licenses, Permits and Filing Fees 400

Charges for Services

Income from Departments 3,000

Rent of Town Property 2,500

Miscellaneous Revenues
Interest on Deposits 35,000

Sale of Town Property 1,000

Fines 400

Other Financing Sources

Income from Water and Sewer Departments 190,800

Income from Trust Funds 1,680

Fund Balance 186,500

Payment in Lieu of Taxes — Hydro 84,803

Payment in Lieu of Taxes — Elektrisola 47,475

Total Revenues and Credits $ 916,424



+
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2. Totally and permanently $700 5 $ 3,500

disabled veterans, their

spouses or windows, and
the windows of veterans

who died or were killed

on active duty.

3. Other war service credits $50 242 12,100

4. Other credits XXXX
(wood, solar, etc.)

TOTAL number and amount XXXX 247 $15,600

Will your town assess, levy and collect resident taxes in 1989? Yes

If yes, number assessed 1932 X $10. = $19,320

TAX RATE VALUATION

Local Assessed Valuation on
which the tax rate(s) for your $129,762,888

governmental units will be computed. $104,848,606
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

CARRI, PLODZIK, SANDERSON
Professional Association

193 North Main Street

Concord, New Hampshire

To the Members of the Board of Selectmen

Town of Boscawen
Boscawen, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial state-

ments of the Town of Boscawen and the combining and individual fund

financial statements of the Town of Boscawen as of and for the year ended

December 31, 1988, as listed in the table of contents. These financial

statements are the responsibility of the Town of Boscawen's management.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements

based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted

auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin-

ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that

our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in Note IC, the general purpose financial statements

referred to above do not include the General Fixed Asset Group of

Accounts, which should be included to conform with generally accepted

accounting principles. The amount that should be recorded in the

General Fixed Asset Account Group i? not known.

In our opinion, except that omission of the General Fixed Asset Group
of Accounts results in an incomplete presentation, as explained in the

above paragraph, the general purpose financial statements referred to

above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the

Town of Boscawen at December 31, 1988, and the results of its operations

and the changes in financial position of its nonexpendable trust funds for

the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles. Also, in our opinion, the combining and individual fund finan-

cial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of each of the individual funds of the Town of

Boscawen at December 31, 1988, and the results of operations of such

funds and the changes in financial position of nonexpendable trust funds

for the year then ended, in conformity with generally accepted account-

ing principles.

Carri Plodzik Sanders

Professional Association

May 26, 1989
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SCHEDULE OF TOWN PROPERTY

As of December 31, 1989

DESCRIPTION VALUE

1. Town Hall, Lands and Buildings M 81D L21 $ 110,700

Furniture and Equipment 2,300

2. Libraries, Lands and Buildings M 81D L12 180,700

Furniture and Equipment 32,000

3. Police Department M 81D L71 83,700

Equipment 24,486

4. Fire Department M 183C L81 148,400

Equipment 118,628

5. Highway Department, Land and Bldg. M 81D L44 81,400

Equipment 141,768

6. Town Office, Lands and Bldg. M 81D L71 181,000

Furniture and Equipment 17,100

7. Parks, Commons and Playgrounds M 81 LOl/02 202,300

8. Sanitary Landfill M 81D L94 177,200

9. Oaklawn Dev. Recreation Area M 79 L66 4,800

10. Greenspace Map 183C/Lot 122X off Sweatt St 3,200

11. Greenspace Map 183C/Lot 122Z off Sweatt St 3,300

12. Town Pound—North Water St. M94 L41A 500

13. Map81/Lot4offE/SRt. 3 7,800

14. Map 47/Lot 38 N/S Water Street 40,300

15. Map 81D/Lot 37 W/S Rte. 4 "Schoolhouse Lot" 40,300

16. Map 83/Lot 48A Armstrong lot off Weir Rd 37,600

17. Map 94/Lot 01 Mutton Road 11,900

18. All Land & Bldgs. Acquired—Tax Collect. Deeds

Weir Property Map 83/Lot 49 194,100

Barnard/Eastman Map 43/Lot 2 113,400

Champagne Property Map 81/Lot 019A 23,000

Martin Property Map 183D/Lot 31 1,200

Map 49/Lot 13, Land between R.R. & River 15,000

Map 49/Lot 14, off E/S Route 3 32,000

Map 49/Lot 15, E/S Route 3 4,800

Map 79/Lot 1, Land off W/S Route 3 9,000

Map 81/Lot 32, Land, Queen Street 19,500

Map 81/Lot 17, Land off E/S Queen Street 7,400

Map 83/Lot 58, Land off E/W Queen Street 4,000

Map 183C/Lot 38, S/S Eel Street 42,900

Map 183D/Lot 133, Land off S/S Rte. 93 access 600

Map 81B/Lot 51 Land off No. Main Street 2,000

Total $2,120,282
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SUMMARY INVENTORY OF VALUATION

Value of Land Only
A. Current Use

(At Current Use Values)

B. Residential

C. Commercial/Industrial

D. Total of Taxable Land
E. Tax Exempt & Non-Taxable

($3,258,500)

Value of Buildings Only
A. Residential

B. Manufactured Housing
C. Commercial/Industrial

D. Total of Taxable Buildings

Valuation Before Exemptions
Blind Exemption
Elderly Exemption

Acres
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Farm Land
Forest Land
Wild Land

Productive

CURRENT USE REPORT
Applicants

Granted in

Prior Years Total

No. of Acres No. of Acres

3,628.45

1,605.59

3,628.45

3,823.53

1,605.59

3,628.45

(New Applicants Granted for 1989—10.0 Acres) 3,833.53

Wet Land 558.26 558.26

TOTAL Number of Acres Exempted under Current Use 9,625.83

TOTAL Number of Acres Taken Out of Current Use During Year 3.09
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FINANCIAL REPORT

RECEIPTS
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FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1, 1989

(JULY 1, 1990) 578,409

GRAND TOTAL
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Debt Service

Principal long term bonds and notes 80,000

Interest — long term bonds and notes 35,640

Interest-tax anticipation notes 26,498

Utilities

Municipal water utility 10, 175

Sewer Utility 263,631

1,268

Miscellaneous

FICA, retirement, pension contributions 30,480

Insurance 107,665

Unemployment Compensation 848

Other:

Town Forest Maint. Fund 26,024

Unclassified

Payments — Tax anticipation notes 500,000

Taxes bought by city/town 168,300

Discounts, abatements, refunds 20,279

Payments to trustees of trust funds 1 ,025

Trailer Park Inspect. Fees 865

Refund — Town Hall Security Deposit 1 ,923

Payments to Other Governments
To State — dog license and

marriage licenses 634

Taxes paid to county 195, 109

Payments to precincts 174,704

Taxes paid to school district:

1989 — 885,307

1990 — 500,000
"

1,385,307

Total expenditures for all purposes 3,630,441 296,243

Fund Balance 12/31/8 843,377

GRAND TOTAL $4,473,818 $ 296,243

BONDS OUTSTANDING

N.H. Municipal Bond Bank $ 420,000

Total Bonds Outstanding 420,000

Total Long-Term Indebtedness $ 420,000

DEBT OUTSTANDING, ISSUED, AND RETIRED
Outstanding

Bonds at the end

during this of this

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Long-term debt purpose:

All other debt $ 500,000 $ 500,000

Short-term (TAN's) debt outstanding at end of fiscal year $ 1 ,000 ,000
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS HELD AT END OF FISCAL YEAR

Bond Funds:

Unexpended proceeds from sale of bond issues

held pending disbursement $ 253,707

BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
As of December 31, 1989

Cash — Attach supporting schedule $ 543,217
In hands of officials 160

Investments (Bank of N.H. — CD) 300,000

Total Cash
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LOANS IN ANTICIPATION OF TAXES

Amount No.
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TOWN CLERK'S REPORT
JANUARY 1 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 1989

3,791 Auto Permits $218,078.50

200 Land Fill Permits 400.00

232 Dog Licenses 1019.00

27 Marriage Licenses 531 .00

7 Bad Check Fees 105.00

3 Filing Fees 3.00

Paid to Treasurer $220,136.50

VITAL STATISTICS

Births 50

Marriages 37

Deaths 113

Barbara M. Holmes
Town Clerk
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TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT
Summary of Tax Accounts

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1989 — (June 30, 1990)

— DR. —

— Levies Of: —
UNCOLLECTED TAXES
Beginning of Fiscal Year: (1)

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes

Yield Taxes

Sewer Rents

Special Sewer Assessment

Taxes Committed to Collector:

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes

Land Use Change Tax
Yield Taxes

Sewer Rents

Other Utilities:

Special Sewer Assessment

1989 Prior

$1,096,402.12

5,610.00

3,483.00

107,801.82

505.00

$611,136.86

19,320.00

2,240.00

8,599.00

195,646.04

2,904.56

Added Taxes:

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes
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TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT
Summary of Tax Accounts

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1989 — (June 30, 1990)

— CR. —
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TAX COLLECTOR'S REPORT
Summary of Tax Sale Accounts to Other Purchasers

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1989 — (June 30, 1990)
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TREASURER'S REPORT
January 1 — December 31, 1989

Cash on Hand — January 1, 1989 $ 578,409

Receipts:

Phvllis Hewev, Tax Collector $2,024,242

Barbara Holmes, Town Clerk 220, 136

State of N.H. 186,182

Miscellaneous Fee 23

Trailer Permit Fees 865

Rent of Town Property 4, 100

Interest and Dividends 66,453

Income from Trust Funds 1,681

Income from Departments 5,503

Fines 1,060

Bank of NH— Tax Anticipation Notes 1 ,500,000

New Trust Funds 1,025

Overrun Costs — Sewer 6,850

Town Hall Security Deposits 2,200

Pavments in Lieu of Taxes 141 ,252

Sale of Town Propertv 650

Sale of Logs — TownForest 26,024

Sewer Users Fund — Interest 3,406

Total Receipts $4,191,652

Total Available 4,770,060

Less: Selectmen's Orders Paid 3,926,684

CashonHand — December 31, 1989 $ 843,377

Patricia C. Knight
Treasurer
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES — 1989

General Government
Financial Administration

Salaries $ 42,160

Meetings and Travel 619

Carri, Plodzik and Sanderson 4,300

$ 47,079

Judicial and Legal

Upton, Sanders, Smith 13,128

Advertising 191

Merrimack County Registry of Deeds 245

Witness Fee 16

13,580

Town Hall and Other Town Buildings

Salaries 1,425

Materials and Supplies 2,823

Utilities 2,757

7,005

Central Administration

Salaries 44,602

Office Supplies 4,765

Utilities 1,808

Building Maintenance 94

Equipment 1,174

Equipment Maintenance 160

Telephone ' 3,326

Postage 2,678

Meetings and Travel 5

Computerization 2,185

Appraisal Work 2,229

63,026

Planning and Zoning
Salaries 4,620

Mileage 275

Office Supplies and Postage 516

Advertising 464

Printing 177

Utilities 590

Dues 2,932

Office Equipment 3,330

12,904

Central N.H. Reg. Planning Com. 4,500
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Election and Registration

Printing and Town Reports 3,561

Election Costs 508

Meals 120

4,189

Advertising and Regional

Dues 1,051

Monitor Publishing Co. 217

1,268

Cemeteries

Salaries 3,388

Trailer 625

Flowers 8

Repairs to Equipment 379

4,400

Public Safety

Police Department
Salaries 113,657

Cruiser Maintenance 1,048

Radio Maintenance 960
Training and Dues 1,370

Photography Expense 123

Telephone 3,642

Uniform Expense 820

Office Expense 1,811

Equipment 664

Building Maintenance 1,693

Merrimack County Dispatch Center 1 1 , 197

136,985

Fire Department
Salaries -- 17,999

Utilities ^ 7,683

Radio Maintenance 1,328

Truck Maintenance and Expense 3,588
Turnout Gear Maintenance 391
Dispatch Insurance 7,369
Training 330
Equipment Maintenance 306
Forest Fire 42

Civil Defense '

Salary 500
Telephone 273
Equipment 175

Building Improvement 1 , 680

2,628
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Safety Code Officer

Salary 1,100

Supplies 275

Meetings/Mileage 158

1,533

Highways, Streets, Bridges

Town Maintenance
Salaries 92,105

Uniform Expense 1 ,982

Gasoline and Diesel Fuel 9,080

Utilities 1,966

Salt 16,745

Road Oil 225

Cold Patch 10,049

Street Signs 98

Repairs to Equipment 1 1 , 780

144,030

Sidewalks, St. Lights, Trees

Concord Elect. Co. 9,704

W.M.Cook& Son — Trees 1,000

Sidewalk Plowing 700

11,404

Sanitation

Salaries 11,915

Tires 2,364

Maint. /Equip. Costs 251

Tipping Fees * 20,488

Dues 5,745

Landfill Maint. (White Coods) 6,363

47,126

Hazardous Household Waste 648

Sewer
Salaries 743

Supplies 525

1,268

Updating Solid Waste Mgmt. Plan 327

Health
Salary 1,400

Meetings and Travel 92

Supplies 39

1,531
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Visiting Nurse Assn.

Animal Control

Human Services

Medical Care
Landlords, Vendors, Utilities

Salary

Meetings and Travel

The Friends Program
Rape and Domestic Violence Crisis Center

Community Action Program

Penacook Rescue Squad

Culture and Recreation

Library

Parks and Recreation

Salaries

Park Program
Electricity

Telephone
Sanitation

Purchases

Maintenance
Civic Program Support

Patriotic Purposes

Old Home Day
Flags — Cemeteries

Penacook Celebration Committee

Conservation Commission
Dues

Penacook Community Centers

Debt Service

Interest — Bonds
Interest — Tax Anticipation Notes

Principal Bond
Interest — Tax Anticipation Note

6,000

325

527

10,871

1,100

241

1,734

540

15,013

3,047

8,500

10,143

3,500

1,249

443
304

390

2,775

9

500

9,170

1,351

108

100

1,559

110

3,000

35,640

26,498

80,000

500,000
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Miscellaneous

FICA, Retirement, Medicare 30,480

Insurance 107,665

Unemployment Compensation 848

Town Forest Maint. Fund — Conservation Com. 26,024

Property Taxes Bought by Town 168,300

Payments to Trustees of Trust Funds 1 ,025

Trailer Park Inspection Fees 865

Discounts, Abatements, Refunds 20,279

Refunds of Town Hall Security Deposits 1,923

Penacook-Boscawen Water Precinct Payroll 10,175

Capital Outlay
Police Cruiser 13,796

Fire Truck 69,887

Septic System — Town Hall 4,491

Solid Waste Transfer Station 202,699

Transfer Station Ground Work 5,158

Town Beautification 212

296,243

Payments to Others

State: Dog Licenses, Marriage Licenses 634

Taxes Paid to County 195, 109

Penacook-Boscawen Water Precinct 1 74 ,704

Merrimack Valley School District 1,385,307

1,755,754

Sewer Users Fund 263,631

TOTAL PAYMENTS ALL PURPOSES $3,926,684



1989 ANNUAL REPORT 47

BOSCAWEN PUBLIC LIBRARY

The total circulation of materials for 1989 was 8,373. We extend our

thanks to the many generous people who assisted our limited budget with

donations of money and many books.

Our loss of Joe Bowes as friend and Trustee is a heavy one. His dedica-

tion to the maintenance of the structure was constant and all phases were
approached with enthusiasm. A memorial fund has been established for

the purchase of books.

The tremendous task of cataloguing each volume at the branch library

has been completed and the first inventory is planned. Congratulations

are due to Bunny Randlett, librarian.

The same task is in process at the main library. Assisting librarian

Barbara Keegan are Sarah Keegan and Doris Oliver. Mrs. Oliver comes to

us as a RSVP volunteer and is retired as Children's Librarian from
Schenectady, NY.
The summer reading program, California Raisin Reading Club, and

the story hour were all a large success in 1989.

New membership applicants doubled with 73 registered at the main
library alone. Library cards will be issued early this year. Your patronage

and encouragement in growth is appreciated.

Library Hours

Main Library Tuesday 2:30-5:00 p.m.
Thursday 3:00-7:00 p.m.

Branch Library Monday 3:30-6:30 p.m.

Wednesday 3:30-7:00 p.m.

Lucile A. Carlson, Chairperson

Librarv Board of Trustees
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BOSCAWEN PUBLIC LIBRARY

Salaries

Social Security

Unemployment Compensation
Electricity

Oil

Insurance (Workers Comp.)
Treasurer's Bond
Trustees Association

Treasurer's Expenses

Books
Maintenance
Supplies

Miscellaneous

Telephone
Water
Less Est. Income

TOTAL $10,143 $12,365

The proposed increase for salaries is requested for more hours, not salary

increase per hour.

1989
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BOSCAWEN PUBLIC LIBRARY ANNUAL REPORT

Balance 1/1/89 $2,978.44

General Account Income
Kimball Trust $ 150.00

Willis Buxton Trust 78 . 03

Martha Buxton Trust 78.03

Harold Holmes 392.54

Now Account 142.90

Refund 6.01

IRS refund 2.97

Town 8,143.00

$10,096.25

General Account Expenditures

Salaries $ 4,554.37

Social Security 703. 16

Electricity 395.66

Telephone 265.97

Oil 718.60

Workmans Comp. 31 1 .00

Treasurers Bond 50.00

Water 50.00

Treasurers Expense 42.65

Maintenance 756.61

$ 7,848.02

Balance 1/1/90 $ 2,248.23

Book Account Income
Balance 1/1/89 $ 132.54

Mrs. John Kimball Trust 5.28

Harry K. White Trust 156. 10

Martha Knowles Trust ^ 747.95

Marv K. Colby - 39.80

Thornton Fund . 300.00

Fines 39.01

Gift -- 10.00

Lost Book ' 5.00

Memorial 71.90

Town 2000

$ 3,507.58

Book Account Expense

Books $ 3,511.24

Balance 1/1/90 (3.66)

Gerrish Account
Balance 1/1/89 $ 288.58

Interest 312.16

$ 600.74

Expended 2.37

Balance 1/1/90 $ 598.37
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HUMAN SERVICE OFFICER'S REPORT
January 1 to December 31, 1989

Applica
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FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT

During 1989 the Boscawen Fire Department responded to 148 calls, a

12% increase over 1988\s 132 responses.

Department training continues with programs at Fitzwilliam's Drill

Yard, Lakes Regional Mutual Aid Association, Capital Area Fire Mutual

Aid Compact and the State of New Hampshire Fire Standards and Train-

ing Commission. Inter-department training is scheduled on a volunteer

and mandatory basis. Individual firefighters have completed or are still

involved in the "Certified Firefighter One" course which consists of 100

hours.

The catastrophic fire of the year was at the Crete Farm with damages
estimated at close to one half million dollars. Firefighters were on the

scene for approximately fifteen hours.

I would like to thank all the officers and firefighters for their effort,

cooperation, and understanding this past year; also a special thanks to the

Boscawen Fire Department's Ladies Auxiliary who answer many alarms

with us to provide food and beverages.

Remember, if you have any fire related problem at any time, do not

hesitate to call the Fire Department!

Fire Phone Number: (1) 225-3355

Respectfully submitted,

Chief Roland "Joe" Bartlett

ROSCAWEN FIRE DEPARTMENT
1990 PROPOSED BUDGET

1989 Actual 1990

Salaries
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REPORT OF TOWN FOREST FIRE WARDEN
AND

STATE FOREST RANGER

During calendar year 1989, the State of New Hampshire experienced

an average number of wildfires. The three leading causes of these

wildfires were fires kindled without written permission of a Forest Fire

Warden, children and debris burning fires that escaped control. All of

these causes are preventable, but only with your help.

Please help our town and state forest fire officials with forest fire

prevention. By New Hampshire State law (RSA 224:27), no person, firm

or corporation shall kindle or cause to be kindled any fire, except when
the ground is covered with snow, without first obtaining a written permit

from the Forest Fire Warden of the town where the burning is to be done.

In order to eliminate false alarms, it is advisable to notify your local fire

department whenever you intend to do any outdoor burning.

Violations of RSA 224:27 are a misdemeanor and you are also liable for

paying all fire suppression costs (RSA 224:28 and RSA 224:36).

The State of New Hampshire, Division of Forests and Lands assisted

many towns in wildland fire suppression during 1989 including several

large fires in the Concord and Chesterfield areas, as well as the 100 acre

fire on Mt. Belknap in Gilford, New Hampshire.

If you have any questions regarding New Hampshire forest fire laws,

please contact your local Forest Fire Warden or the Division of Forests

and Lands at 271-2217.

FOREST FIRE STATISTICS — 1989

# of Fires Statewide 550 . 00

Acres Burned Statewide 553 . 75

Cost of Suppression $93,957.00

Richard S. Chase Roland "Joe" Bartlett

Forest Ranger
""

Forest Fire Warden
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PARKS & RECREATION REPORT 1989

An average of thirty five children attended the summer program at the

Boscawen Town Park. The children participated in arts & crafts, field

trips to water slides, beaches & state parks, they took part in games and

contests and many other fun activities. Due to the 10% budget, for the

first time we charged a registration fee for the summer program.

We also cut the maintenance portion of the budget, so no money was

spent in that area.

Boscawen 4-H members planted trees between the railroad tracks and

the fence that runs along the tennis courts and ball fields.

Louise D.M. Laughlin

Chairman
Park & Recreation Committee

REPORT OF HEALTH OFFICER

During the year of 1989 the Health Officer answered 44 calls for

assistance with health related situations. Some violations are being

resolved through legal avenues but most health hazardous conditions

were corrected through the mutual cooperation of residents and the

Health Officer.

Should you have any questions regarding possible health or safety viola-

tions, please call me or the selectmen's office.

Respectfully submitted,

John Dagata
Health Officer

796-2609 / 796-2426
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CENTRAL NEW HAMPSHIRE
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION

329 Daniel Webster Highway
Boscawen, New Hampshire 03303

(603) 796-2129

The Central New Hampshire Regional Planning Commission
(CNHRPC) is an association of municipalities in Central New Hampshire.

Seventeen towns and the City of Concord are within Merrimack County
and two towns are within Hillsborough County. Sixteen towns, the City

of Concord, and Merrimack County are members in fiscal year 1990. The
Town of Boscawen is a member in good standing of the Commission.

The CNHRPC is organized under RSA 36:45-53, which states that the

purpose of the Commission is to prepare a coordinated plan for the

development of the region. The statute also enables us to assist com-

munities with local planning activities.

Three planners and one support person are currently employed by the

CNHRPC. The staff prepares regional plans and provides professional

planning assistant to member communities.

Our accomplishments over the last year include:

Housing: We published Affordable Housing Needs in the Central

Region in September 1989. The report identifies the number of low and
moderate income housing units needed and provided in the Region,

allocates the deficiency to individual municipalities, creates targets by
community for affordable housing, and recommends strategies for use by
communities to address local housing needs.

Regional Plan: We adopted and published the "Coals and Objectives

Statement" of the regional master plan. Being the heart of the plan, each

objective will be addressed. The regional land use element should be com-
pleted this fiscal year.

Solid Waste: The Commission prepared and the Central New Hamp-
shire Solid Waste District adopted the District Solid Waste Management
Plan. The plan contains a long term strategy to deal with landfill and
incineration requirements, recycling, septic and sludge disposal, and
household hazardous waste collection through the year 2005.

Recycling: The Regional Recycling Task Force is investigating methods
to implement efficient, comprehensive, and cost-effective recycling

throughout the Region. The CNHRPC should soon receive a grant

through the Governor's recycling initiative to assist municipalities in

obtaining and installing equipment necessary to operate recycling

programs.

Household Hazardous Waste Collection: The CNHRPC organized a

household hazardous waste collection on October 14, 1989. Cosponsors

were Wheelabrator Concord, LP, the City of Concord, and the Towns of

AUenstown, Boscawen, Bow, Canterbury, Dunbarton, Hopkinton, and
Pembroke.
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During 1989 CNHRPC activities in Boscawen included assisting the

Planning Board in finalizing three elements of the master plan; assisting

the Zoning and Planning Boards in reviewing a major development;

assisting the Planning Board in obtaining specialized development review

assistance; writing a letter of support for the Town's successful Land Con-
servation Investment Program grant; assisting the Selectmen in investi-

gating grants for handicapped access; and estimating the acreage of an
industrially zoned area.

Bill Klubben
Executive Director
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LIFE SAFETY OFFICER REPORT

This year I would like to explain what the Life Safety Code is and how
it applies to the population of Boscawen.

The National Fire Protection Association is an organization that is

made up of people from all walks of life who share a common concern.

That concern is protection from the potential danger of uncontrolled fire

and other related areas. Within the NFPA there is a committee dedicated

to constantly reviewing and upgrading the Life Safety Code as newer or

better methods of protection evolve. "The purpose of this Code is to

establish minimum requirements that will provide a reasonable degree of

safety from fire in buildings and structures."

Compliance with certain other standards and codes that address such as

electrical, heating, fuel supply, etc., are also a requirement of the Code.

In referencing standards that have already been established, any duplica-

tion or contradiction is avoided.

The Code as adopted by the Town of Boscawen, applies to all

buildings, structures, and premises, except for single-family dwellings

that are occupied by the owner. Although the Code makes provision for

one-family dwellings, it was felt that believe it or not, a man's home is still

his castle, and to properly apply the Code, a full time employee would be

needed. In the case of a duplex type building where the owner lives in one

portion, the Code does apply to portions that are occupied by other

parties.

The Life Safety Code is also mandated by the State of New Hampshire

as part of the Fire Code and basically applies in the same manner.

Because we have an Ordinance adopting the Life Safety Code, the Fire

Marshal pretty much leaves administration and enforcement to local

authorities, and stands ready to assist if called on.

It is important to note that other fire safety measures, including the

State Fire Code, may apply regardless of our Ordinance. Should anyone

need information on what is required of them, contact the town offices

and ask that I get in touch with them.

One last note as to why some buildings have already been inspected

while others may be older or right next door and have not.

It is my intent to make higher occupancy buildings a priority for

routine inspections, however, there are circumstances that come up
needing attention. When new construction is either in the planning stage

or in progress, it is important to determine if Code requirements will be

met. Also when a building use change occurs, requirements may vary

from one use to the other. For obvious reasons, when a call is received

from anyone who feels that a hazard may exist at property of their own or

that of another, the situation is looked into immediately.

My thanks goes to all who have cooperated in the preceding year, and
as always, please do not hesitate to call with any questions.

Respectfully,

Harold A. Hamilton
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BOSCAWEN OLD HOME DAY REPORT
The 1989 Old Home Day celebration started with the tenth annual Miss

Boscawen & Junior Miss Boscawen Pageant on August 25. Melissa

Morrisette, daughter of Roger and Harriet Morrisette of Boscawen was
crowned 1989 Miss Boscawen and Janeek Smith, daughter of Allan and
Ida Smith of Boscawen, was runner-up. Lisa Gray, daughter of Tom and
Kathleen Gray of Penacook, was crowned 1989 Junior Miss Boscawen and
Marie Cochran, daughter of Ray and Becky Levesque of Boscawen was
runner-up. Following the pageant was a teen dance held at the

Merrimack Valley High School.

On Saturday, August 26, the activities started with the parade. This

year our theme was "Boscawen Celebrates The Holidays." Once again

families, organizations, individuals, and school groups participated in the

parade. There were walking Christmas presents, elfs, floats with goblins,

saints, Christmas trees, and the Thanksgiving turkey. The parade also

included bands, antique cars, horses, and the usual line of Boscawen fire

trucks, Penacook Resque Squad, and Boscawen Police cars.

After the parade, everyone was invited to the Town Park to participate

in a number of different activities. Young and old enjoyed playing beano,

with donations from local merchants being awarded for prizes. Children

enjoyed a magic show, and the teens found the S&W Blizzards'

skateboarding performance exciting. Many youngsters brought their

favorite stuffed animals to be judged in the Stuffed Animal Show. There
were awards given for the smallest, largest, longest, shortest, cuddliest,

best costume, etc., etc. John and Bernard Davis of Boscawen won first

place in the doubles horseshoe contest, and Rick & Ray Fife of Boscawen
were second. Again this year the Boscawen Police Department and the

Boscawen Fire Department engaged in their annual Old Home Day soft-

ball game. This year the Police Department came out the winners, but

only by a slim margin — the score 13-12.

You might say that this year's Old Home Day was the "year of the

cow." The Old Home Day Committee had a new design for teeshirts

(thanks to Sandy Morse for her idea, and Patty Glover for her drawing
talents) that included a cow. Also, we joined many other organizations in

trying out a new game "When The Chips Fall." A cow from Roger
Sanborn's farm was the star player in this game.

Special recognition prizes were given to Lena Dube of Penacook for

being the oldest person present; Britney Parkinson, 5 weeks old, for being

the youngest person, the Frost family for being the largest family in

attendance with 20 members presents. Once again our chicken barbecue
was a sell-out. Our compliments and thanks to our cook, Tom Danko, and
his many helpers. Saturday evening there was an adult dance. This was
held at the Town Park tennis court. A few residents put on their heavy
sweaters and enjoyed dancing in the moonlight under the stars.

Our 1989 celebration was a great success. Without the support of the

townspeople and our local merchants, Boscawen Old Home Day would
not survive. The committee extends its sincere thanks to all who helped to

make this year's Old Home Day a success. We look forward to seeing

everyone again next year.

Thanks again for your support. Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen F. Jaworski, President

Boscawen Old Home Day Committee
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BOSCAWEN POLICE REPORT

CHIEF'S MESSAGE

We have just completed a very trying year and decade. As I sat down to

write mv yearly message I reviewed those of my predecessors' as well as

my own. Over and over again the gist of those yearly summaries pointed

to increases in the department's workload. To illustrate this I have attached

the following graph comparison for the workload of the last decade.

In 1989, the Town voted to adopt a 10% cut of the overall Town
budget, which resulted in an actual 14% cut from the Police

Department's budget. Due to this the department had to priorize calls for

service and actually cut services to handle the 9% increase in calls.

This year's budget is essentially the same budget as my 1989 proposal.

There is also a warrant article for the appropriation of $3,000.00 to

purchase equipment for our fight against drugs in the Town of Boscawen.

As drugs effect everyone today in one form or another I would ask for

your support of this article.

I would also once again pledge to the Town of Boscawen that the

department will continue to strive to maintain its professionalism and

service to the community. 1 thank you for your continued support.

Respectfully submitted,

Mark K. Pepler

Chief of Police

THE DECADE OF THE 80's REVIEW
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BOSCAWEN PUBLIC WORKS
PROPOSED 1990 BUDGET
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Note: Due to 1989 budget cuts: new construction reduced from 25,000 to

3,584; Cemeteries — Operating Exp. from 4,000 to 3,668; equipment
from 1,150 to 770; trees from 1,500 to 1,000 (total cut $23,144)

Warrant Articles for 1990 — highway sander (8.600) & wing plow
(2,400).
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SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT
PROPOSED BUDGET 1990

1989 Actual 1990

Operating Salaries $ 8,272 $11,915 $ 20,833

Tires 1,800 2,364 1,200

Maint. /Equip. Cost 500 251 1,800

Electric 2,539 2,600

Phone 100 180

Water 25 75

Tipping 42,651 20,488 56,500

Haulings 9,000 13,000

Dues (Concord Regional Solid

Waste Resource Recovery Assn.) 5,828 5,638

Landfill Maintenance
(White Goods) 4,000 6,363 2,000

Dues (NH Resource

Recovery Assn.) 107 107 120

Groundwater Sampling 18,200

Household Hazardous Waste 1,800

Sub-Total $74,972 $47,126 $118,308

Anticipated Cr. from CRSWRR (8,000)

Estimated Cr. from Private Haulers (6,000)

TOTAL $104,308

*Concord Regional Solid Waste Resource Recovery dues are now
incorporated in the tipping fee.

*Previously put in as warrant article.
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CONCORD REGIONAL SOLID WASTE/RESOURCE
RECOVERY COOPERATIVE

I. 1990 BUDGET Item Budget Subtotals

1. Wheelabrator Concord Co. Service Fees

(a) 1990 budgeted service fee $2,057,209

(b) Reserve for 1989 reconciliation 40,000

$2,097,209

2. Bypass Disposal Cost Reserve 137,500

3. Franklin Residue Landfill

(a) Operations and Maintenance 643,561

(b) Bond and Loan Payments 523,945

(c) Expansion Sinking Fund 521,224

(d) Closure Sinking Fund 127,598

1,816,328

4. Cooperative expenses, including

consultants & studies 435,725

TOTAL 1990 BUDGET $4,486,762

Less, portion of surplus applied

to 1990 budget (99,092)

NET — to be raised by
Cooperative Member Municipalities $4,387,670

@ GAT of 120,375, cost = $36.45/ton

II. Summary The 1989 year was an exciting one for the Cooperative as

the long awaited Plant and Ashfill came on line in time and within

budget. When all factors are complete we will be entering the 1990 year

with an anticipated $50,000 in our Operating Reserve Fund and the same
Tipping Fee of $36.45 per ton as we had in 1989. Including the

shakedown period from April 1989 to August 28, 1989 and the Commer-
cial Operations from August 28 to November 30, 1989 the Plant processed

107,285 tons of refuse and the Co-op disposed of 41,529 tons of ash

through its Operator, J. D. McLeod at the Ashfill. It is anticipated that

the Co-op Towns/Cities will dispose of 120,000 tons of trash in 1990
which will be about 78% of the Plant capacity. Once again many thanks

to the Co-op representatives who have spent many evenings in guiding

this project to its present status.

Ronald H. Ford
Project Director
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TOWN OF BOSCAWEN EMPLOYEE SALARIES

Selectmen Chairman
Selectman
Selectman

Administrative Assistant

Secretary/Town Office

Treasurer/Bookkeeper

Tax Collector

Town Clerk

Town Hall/Janitor

Planning/Zoning Secretary

Zoning Officer

Chief of Police

Police Sergeant

Patrolman #1
Patrolman #2
Police Dept. Clerk/Dispatcher

Crossing Guard
Chief of Fire Department
Deputy Chiefs/F.D.

Captains/F.D.

Lieutenants/F .D

.

Engineers/F.D.
Firefighters

Life Safety Code Officer

Public Works Director

Highway/Employee #1
Highway/Employee #2
Highway/Employee #3
Highway/Employee #4
Highway/Employee #5
Solid Waste/Pt. Time
Civil Defense Officer

Health Officer

Welfare Officer

Librarians (2)

Parks & Rec. Salaries (2)

1989

$ 2,500

2,200

2,200

20,000

15,080

15,500

14,400

Proposed

1990

$ 2,500

2,200

2,200

21,600

16,287

16,740

15,552

[41,000] 1&2

6,400 + fees 6,912 + fees

1,400 1,515

3,000 3,500

1,800 1,950

28,000 30,250

21,300 23,000

20,800

18,400

15,600 16,850

2,300 2,500

2,000 2,495

734 874

545 680
467 582

451 563

389 485

1,100 1,200

17,200 18,576

21,300 23,004

21,580 23,306

16,620 17,950

16,620 17,950

15,580 16,826

8,112

500 550

1,400 1,515

1,100 1,200

5,000 5,200

3,500 3,780
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January 22, 1990

To Whom It May Concern:

The Budget Committee of the Town of Boscawen, New Hampshire has

reviewed the 1990 budget requests for all boards and departments on a

line by line basis. We have also conducted meetings with the Town's
largest departments, i.e.: the Police Department, the Fire Department,

the Public Works Department, and with the Board of Selectmen, and
have received a detailed explanation regarding their budget requests. We
appreciate the effort on behalf of all the boards and departments for con-

trolling expenses in 1989 and for submitting reasonable budget requests

for 1990. Therefore, the Budget Committee wholly supports this 1990

budget.

Bonald W. Reed, Chairman
James F. Colby
Robert G. Kenevel

Janet D. Moore
Williams R. Bevans

William M. Harmon
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REPORT OF CONSERVATION COMMISSION

In January of 1989 the Conservation Commission was in the middle of

the selective timber cut in the town forest. In June, at the end of cutting,

we had harvested 377,075 board feet of lumber and 34 cords of firewood.

Part of the proceeds went into the town general fund. At the town
meeting in March, townspeople voted that the Conservation Commission

should have a Town Forest Management Fund and some timber cut pro-

ceeds went into that. This enabled us to purchase an additional property

which had previously divided the Town Forest. Thanks goes to Helen

Armstrong and her sons for selling their property to us. Our surveyor is

now finalizing Town Forest maps and they will be available for viewing

soon.

The Commission also assisted the Central New Hampshire Regional

Planning Commission in promoting Household Hazardous Waste Day.

We strongly urge the town to support and utilize this service because of

the effects hazardous wastes can have on our precious water resource if

allowed into the ground. Our attention to keeping ground water clean

now will help to insure that our children and grandchildren will have

enough clean water in the future.

The Conservation Commission investigated several dredge and fill

applications along with on site inspections and advised the New Hamp-
shire Wetlands Board of our findings. The largest of these applications

was on the Lake Forest Development property of E.K. Associates. Com-
mission members attended many meetings and spent many hours of study

on this application. The end result was the New Hampshire Wetlands

Board denied approval of permit.

The Land Conservation Task Force, a sub-committee of the Conserva-

tion Commission, has been successful in gaining preliminary approval of

easements on 160 acres of property in town through the Land Conserva-

tion Investment Program. Their work is ongoing on this project and

several other landowners in to\vn have expressed interest in placing

easements on their property in the next round of applications starting this

spring. Properties with easements will remain as they presently are now
and cannot be used for other than forestry or agricultural purposes.

The Central New Hampshire Regional Planning Commission has

recently reported to us regarding the study done on the Beaver Dam
Brook Watershed, the large brook entering Couch Pond and Walker

Pond. This is a very lengthy and detailed Water Resource Management
and Protection Plan for the three towns this watershed exists in,

Boscawen, Salisbury and Webster. This information should be very useful

to the Conservation Commission, Planning Board and Zoning Board.

In June the Conservation Commission was responsible for sending two

students, Amy Lorden and Joshua Nixon, to New Hampshire Youth Con-

servation Camp. We intend to continue sending two conservation minded

students to camp each year as we have done the past few years. Any
Boscawen youth interested in going should call a commission member for

an application. Thanks to businesses in town who donated funds for camp
tuition.

Edward Damon was chairman of the Boscawen Conservation for about

eight years. He spent many hours above and beyond what most people
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would have. Untold evenings and weekends working on special projects or

maybe some extra study on a particular conservation related interest.

Many thanks to Ed for a job well done. He is still very active and helpful

as a regular member.
The Commission's new meeting time is the fourth Thursday of each

month, (the November meeting is on the fifth Thursday) at 7:30 p.m. in

the Planning Board/Zoning Board office. We invite all who are interested

to attend our meetings.

Respectfully submitted,

Charles Jaworski, Chairman
Boscawen Conservation Commission
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CENSUS COMMITTEE OF BOSCAWEN

"Two hundred years and counting: The 1990 Census."

The first enumeration of the population of the United States took place

in 1790. On April 1, 1990, the 21st enumeration of the population of the

United States will again take place. The basic reason for taking the 21st

census is the same as it was 200 years ago: to get a fair representation

among the states in the House of Representatives. It also is used to redraw
state and local legislative districts.

But what about Boscawen? How can the census help our community? A
great deal of federal and state money is redistributed to local governments

based on census statistics. The statistics gathered from the census also

helps plan and improve public facilities and programs such as day-care

centers, health clinics, programs for the elderly and transportation. It

assesses the need for state housing bonds for below-market interest rates

on mortgages, helps plan school district boundaries and school construc-

tion programs. Census information helps identify areas that might need

energy assistance or help develop programs to reduce unemployment.
Your support is needed. Help your community get a complete and

accurate count. Your answers are kept confidential. All personal informa-

tion from the 1990 Census will be locked up until 2062. No agency, the

FBI, IRS, courts, military or any other agency, has access to the informa-

tion on the census.

So I urge you to take the time to answer the census. If you have any
questions or concerns, the Census Committee of Boscawen would be more
than happy to be of assistance.

"Answer the Census. It counts for more than you think."

Respectfully,

Janice Steenbeke

CENSUS COMMITTEE OF BOSCAWEN MEMBERS

Janice Steenbeke, Chairperson

Don Barker

Barbara Keegan
Dale Matthews
Penny Nixon

Joy Sloane
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BOSCAWEN TOWN MEETING
MARCH 14, 1989

The annual Town Meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by the

Moderator Rick Trombly, who read the warrant and declared the polls

open until 7:00 p.m.

A motion made by Robert Keneval was that the Articles 2 through 22 be

held after the ballots were counted in the evening.

Ballot Clerks were Eugene Randlett, Bernadette Randlett, Marie

Sherman, and Carl Glover.

Polls closed at 7:00 p.m. Votes were counted and the results were:

Selectman - 3 Years Thomas Danko 238

Town Clerk Barbara M. Holmes 256

Town Treasurer Patricia C. Knight 248

Trustee of Trust Funds - 3 Years Cynthia A. Houston 252

Trustee of Library Funds - 3 YearsMary E. H. Weeks 249

Total Ballots Cast: 266 Regular: 263 Absentee: 3

The meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by Moderator Rick

Trombly who gave the report of the balloting.

A motion was made by Sandra Brodeur to proceed to Article 14 at this

time before any other articles as the article by law had to be voted on by

paper ballot and check list. The motion was seconded by Thomas Danko.

There being no discussion, the motion was carried, and the voting ensued.

Larry Bird moved to accept Article 14 as written. Douglas Supry

seconded the motion. Discussion: Douglas Supry explained where the

land is on a plan, that there are 65 acres for use for the landfill, the poten-

tial in the future for anything leaching out from the landfill, the test wells

along the perimeter of the boundary lines, and that testing would be done

at least four times a year to assure nothing is leaching out of the landfill.

Douglas Supry explained that by the time a contaminant would be found

in the test wells, it would already be off the landfill property and,

therefore, the Town needed to have the extra acreage to stem any liabil-

ity as it cannot purchase liability insurance at this time in connection with

the landfill. Richard Sweatt wanted to know if 10 acres was going to be

enough. Douglas Supry explained that 10 acres would be enough to know
that contaminants were leaching out of the landfill, not the transfer sta-

tion, and that it would give enough time to take corrective measures and
prevent the contaminants from going any further. When the landfill was

put in, it was not thought about at the time to worry about any con-

taminants leaching out and, therefore, no plans had been made for that

possibility. Henry Carrier wanted to know if purchasing the 10 acres of

land would stop the contaminants from going further. Douglas Supry

explained that it would not. The engineering firm did studies and put

pilot wells all over the place to determine where the ground water was
going, and the State determined where the test wells would actually be.

Stanley Ford wanted to know what the land was assessed for and was told

by Douglas Supry that it was assessed for over thirty thousand dollars
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($30,000.00), that there were other values to the property such as timber

and fill matter, soon to be needed for capping and closing the present

landfill. Claudia Damon discussed various ways of cleaning up any pos-

sible contaminants, all of which would cost a considerable amount of

money. Ed Maloof wanted to know if the transfer station would disturb

the ground water and was advised that where the transfer station would
be mostly on top of the land and that very little excavating would be

done, it would disturb the ground water only a small amount. Michelle

Tremblay suggested the Town buy the particular piece of property after it

may have been tested positive for contaminantion and was advised by

Moderator Rick Trombly that the private property that would have been

tested positive would probably be worth more than forty thousand dollars

($40,000.00).

ARTICLE 1. To choose all necessary Town Officers for the year

ensuing.

Official Weighers: Ronald Reed moved to re-elect the incumbents as

listed in the Annual Report. The motion was seconded by Eugene

Randlett. There being no discussion, the motion passed.

Surveyors of Wood and Lumber: Richard Sweatt moved to re-elect the

incumbents as listed in the Annual Report. The motion was seconded by

William Harmon. There being no discussion, the motion passed.

Fence Viewers: Dorothy Sanborn moved to elect Douglas Supry a fence

viewer. Larry Bird moved to second the motion. Discussion: James
Steenbeke was no longer a resident of Boscawen and was, therefore,

removed from the office of Fence Viewer. There being no further discus-

sion, the motion was passed.

ARTICLE 2: To raise such sums of money as may be necessary to

defray town charges for the ensuing year and make appropriations of the

same.

Douglas Supry made a motion to raise one million one hundred seven

thousand four hundred fifty five dollars ($1,107,455.00) which is

necessary to defray town charges for the ensuing year and make appro-

priations of the same. Moderator Rick Tremblay explained that an error

was made in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) in the

Annual Report (p. 14) under Interest Expense-Long Term Bonds & Notes

which should be changed to read thirty five thousand six hundred forty

dollars ($35,640.00) which would change the Total Appropriations figure

to read one million one hundred seven thousand four hundred fifty five

dollars ($1,107,455.00). Richard Sweatt make a motion to discuss budget

item by item. Mickey Cummings seconded the motion. Discussion: Ray
Fisher suggested that the figure should just be voted on. After being voted

on, the motion to discuss the budget item by item was defeated.

Moderator Rick Trombly advised that the motion before the Town was to

raise one million one hundred seven thousand four hundred fifty five

dollars ($1,107,455.00).

Don Welcome moved that fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) be added

to the budget under the planning and zoning budget bringing this item to

fifty five thousand five hundred twenty five dollars ($55,525.00). This

fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) would be used to hire a consulting

firm to assist the Planning and Zoning Board in their study of the effects of
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the Lake Forest Development. This study would be to cover School,

Highways, Police, Fire, and any other affect on the community that may
be caused by this development. Steven Harris seconded the motion. Don
Welcome explained that while the board was competent enough to do a

good job, they would also be competing with professionals and that they

were not quite competent enough to do an in depth study necessary to

come up with the answers needed. Michelle Tremblay wanted clarifica-

tion as to whether the contractor would bear the cost of doing the studies.

Steven Harris suggested that if the developer were to hire the consultant,

there would be no real impartiality. Becky Gauthier advised that in all

cases, when a developer is hired, the Town is able to hire a consultant

they want to do the studies but that the cost would be charged to the

developer. David Nickerson also advised that the Merrimack Valley

school has the ability to use the consultant at no cost to the Town. Don
Welcome suggested that the Town should hire their own people to verify.

Michelle Tremblay reiterated that the Town would hire the consultant

and the developer would receive the bill. Ed Brodeur, chairman of the

Planning Board, advised that the developer is required to do studies on

impact on schools, etc., and stated that the fifty thousand dollars

($50,000.00) though well intentioned, is just not necessary.

Moderator Rick Trombly advised that if the amendment were to be

adopted, then the new total would be one million one hundred fifty seven

thousand four hundred fifty five dollars ($1,157,455.00). Moderator
Trombly also advised that the motion to be voted on is whether or not to

add fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) to the budget and advised that if

the amendment failed, then the original motion would be on the floor.

The amendment was voted on but was defeated unanimously. Moderator
Trombly advised that the motion on the floor was to raise one million one

hundred seven thousand four hundred fifty five dollars ($1,107,455.00).

Discussion: Richard Sweatt wanted to know about an overdraft of the

police department budget by twelve thousand dollars ($12,000.00), and
Mark Pepler explained that it went completely over budget by only six-

teen hundred dollars ($1,600.00) as an officer was lost in March and the

time for other officers to cover was paid at time and a half.

Claire Clark wanted to know how the budget would affect the tax rate,

and Douglas Supry advised that the State sets the tax rate after it has

received all of the pertinent information. Richard Sweatt reiterated that

the police budget was overspent by twelve thousand dollars ($12,000.00)

according to the Annual Report, and Mark Pepler further explained that

except for the difference of sixteen hundred dollars ($1,600.00), the rest of

the money was brought back in reimbursements such as police coverage at

school dances, road construction sites, etc., and that it just had to be
accounted for differently because of the State.

Thomas Danko advised that the operating budget is only being

increased by two hundred seventy three thousand dollars ($273,000.00)

over last year's operating budget which would mean that the tax rate

would increase by a little over two dollars ($2.00) per thousand plus what
is being paid now. Betsy Millard expressed her concern that the operating

budget does not even include the school plans. David Nickerson reminded
the tax payers that the teachers' contracts had not yet been settled and
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how would that affect the taxes. Michelle Tremblay said that it would be

a thirty two (32) percent increase in taxes over what was paid last year,

not including school board decisions. Pat Lemay suggested not cutting

services but checking into other revenues other than at the Town Meeting.

Moderator Rick Trombly advised that the motion on the floor was to raise

one million one hundred thousand four hundred fifty five dollars

($1,107,455.00). A vote was taken and the motion was defeated.

Moderator Trombly received a request for a show of hands on the motion

just voted on. Richard Sweatt moved that the budget be cut by ten (10)

percent, to raise and appropriate nine hundred ninety six thousand seven

hundred nine dollars and fifty cents ($996,709.50). Henry Carrier

seconded the motion. Thomas Danko reminded the tax payers that a ten

(10) percent cut would reduce the budget by about one hundred eleven

thousand dollars ($111,000.00) with payments amounting to one hundred
sixteen thousand dollars ($116,000.00) in 1989 bond and interest for the

transfer station which would amount to two hundred twenty seven thou-

sand dollars ($227,000.00) being deducted from the budget being worked
out by the people, which leaves forty six thousand dollars ($46,000.00)

more than last year. We would be interested in what we are to do with all

these departments in the coming year. Richard Sweatt: We are going to

give you the authority to transfer the money from one appropriation to

another. Bernadette Randlett asked if the ten (10) percent cut would
affect everything, line by line. Moderator Trombly: The way the budget

operates is: Although you see a line item budget in front of you, you only

raise and appropriate that one lump sum of money. The Selectmen have

the authority to spend the money as they see fit. There being no further

discussion, the motion to pass the budget in the amount of nine hundred
ninety six thousand seven hundred nine dollars and fifty cents

($996,709.50) was voted on and passed.

ARTICLE 3: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to

take such action as may be necessary to negotiate an agreement with the

State of New Hampshire and the Town of Canterbury to raise and appro-

priate a sum not to exceed thirty three thousand four hundred dollars

($33,400.00) to have the Boscawen-Canterbury Bridge demolished and
removed. Estimated cost not to exceed two hundred thousand dollars

($200,000.00) with the funding split for the State/Towns at 2/3 State and
1/3 being shared equally between Boscawen and Canterbury.

Richard Sweatt moved the article be tabled. Jim Rostron seconded the

motion. Article 3 was tabled.

ARTICLE 4: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen to

negotiate an agreement with the Town of Webster and to raise and appro-

priate a sum not to exceed fourteen hundred dollars ($1,400.00) to install

a chain link fence at Beaver Dam Cemetery with the cost being shared

eqeually with the Town of Webster. Boscawen's share not to exceed four-

teen hundred dollars ($1,400.00) with the withdrawal of this amount
from the interest accumulated on the Cemetery Improvement Fund.

Larry Bird moved the article be accepted. Richard Sweatt seconded the

motion. Dorothy Sanborn moved that the article be amended to authorize

the Selectmen to raise and appropriate fourteen hundred dollars

($1,400.00) to restore the present wooden fence, with two gates in the

same manner as it is now constructed. James Colby seconded the motion.
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James Colby offered to furnish the lumber without charge. Richard

Sweatt wanted to know if the Webster Selectmen had been talked to

about the issue and was informed that there was a similar article on the

warrant. Amendment to Article 4 passed. Motion to pass article as

amended passed.

ARTICLE 5: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a

sum not to exceed one hundred and forty four thousand dollars

($144,000.00) for the purchase of a new Class A combination pumper fire

truck. This truck will replace the 1969 Ford Pumper/Tanker which will

be sold by sealed bid with the Selectmen reserving the right to accept or

reject any or all bids.

Roland "Joe" Bartlett moved the article be accepted. William Harmon
seconded the motion. Discussion: Thomas Cummings wanted to know
how much money and service had been put into the fire truck in the past

year and how much it would cost to bring the truck up to specifications.

Roland "Joe" Bartlett explained that the truck has cost approximately one

thousand dollars ($1,000.00) per year for the last five years, and it is

twenty years old. Richard Sweatt suggested mutual aid and "Joe" Bartlett

explained that mutual aid must be given as well as received. Henry
Carrier suggested improvising such as getting a new pump that could be

put on the old truck. "Joe" Bartlett explained that cost for pumps run

from fourteen to sixteen thousand dollars ($14 - 16,000.00), which would
not include valves, installation, etc. and that it would have to be made
compatible with the old truck on which the frame is getting old as well.

Refurbishing just the motor and transmission would cost thirty five thou-

sand dollars ($35,000.00). It would not include necessary air brakes

which run about fifteen hundred dollars ($1,500.00). Betsy Millard

wanted to know why the issue couldn't be raised as a bond issue and was
advised by Douglas Supry that one hundred forty four thousand dollars

($144,000.00) is very little to be considered for a bond issue and would be

better gotten at a recognized lending institution and pay the going interest

rate. Roland "Joe" Bartlett also advised that the State Fire Marshall's

Office has nothing to do with the Town's fire equipment, as had been
previously mentioned by Betsy Millard, but that the Town is regulated by
Insurance Service Offices of Quincy, Massachusetts. Refurbishing the

entire truck would cost between eighty five to one hundred thousand

dollars ($85 - 100,000.00) and it would still be the old truck. Bernadette

Randlett suggested second hand equipment. Danny Carey advised that it

was time to replace the truck as the truck was not made to last twenty

years, and that the volunteer men should have decent equipment to work
with. Bob Carey wanted to know if there was any difference for fire

insurance rates and the liability between a new truck and one twenty

years old and was advised by Douglas Supry that he believed there would
be no liability and that he did not believe insurance rates would go up or

down. Thomas Cummings wanted to know if the new truck would have
the same specifications as the old one and would it be housed at the same
fire station or would another one have to be built. Bill Harmon stated that

if a new truck was not purchased now, then it would have to be done
within a few years anyway and to have the truck located at the upper sta-

tion where there is room and not hurt the people in the lower end for

response time. He also stated that it would be pointless to build a new sta-
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tion as there was no land in the southern part of the town and to move
north, it would still be closer to the existing station. The truck would be of

a much larger capacity, it would fit the needs of the Town better, and it

would last for another twenty years even though the needs at that time

would be greater than today.

Dorothy Sanborn moved to cut off further discussion. Leda Supry
seconded the motion. The motion passed.

The votes were counted, and there being 118 "No" votes and 148 "Yes"

votes, the article is passed.

ARTICLE 6: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a

sum not to exceed fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) for the purchase

of a police cruiser.

Mark Pepler moved to accept Article 6 as read. Bernadette Randlett

seconded the motion. There being no discussion, the motion was passed.

ARTICLE 7: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a

sum not to exceed eight thousand five hundred dollars ($8,500.00) to help

support the Penacook Rescue Squad for its emergency medical services

and rescue operations in the Town.
Ron Reed moved the article be accepted. Mickey Cummings seconded

the motion. Discussion: David Nickerson wanted to know what exactly

was happening with the Penacook Rescue Squad. Pam Davis, director of

the rescue squad, advised that December 31, 1989 is the deadline to leave

Manor Station, the possibility of moving into the lower end fire station,

and looking into land in Boscawen as Boscawen makes up 50 percent of

the calls the rescue squad answers each year. There being no further

discussion, the article was passed.

ARTICLE 8: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a

sum not to exceed six thousand dollars ($6,000.00) for the services of the

Concord Regional Visiting Nurse Association.

Larry Bird moved the article be accepted. Douglas Supry seconded the

motion. There being no discussion, the article was passed.

ARTICLE 9: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a

sum not to exceed three thousand dollars ($3,000.00) toward the

operating expenses of the Penacook Centers—two thousand five hundred
dollars ($2,500.00) for the Youth Center and five hundred dollars

($500.00) for the Senior Center.

Claire Clarke made motion to accept the article. Larry Bird seconded

the motion. Wayne Morse suggested building a community center in

Boscawen. A hand vote was requested and there being 84 in favor and 65

opposed, the article was passed.

ARTICLE 10: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a

sum not to exceed three thousand forty seven dollars ($3,047.00) for the

services to low income residents of Boscawen through the Concord Area

Center Community Action Program, Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

Larry Bird made a motion to accept the article as printed. Douglas

Supry seconded the motion. There being no discussion, the article passed.

ARTICLE 11: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a

sum not to exceed one thousand eight hundred and sixty dollars

($1,860.00) to contribute to a regional Household Hazardous Waste
Collection Program provided that the Board of Selectmen approves the

terms of the Town's participation in the program. This Program will
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enhance the proper disposal of hazardous household products such as

paint thinner, solvents, pesticides and the like.

Ed Damon moved the article be accepted. Roger W. Sanborn seconded

the motion. Discussion: Bill Harmon suggested that there be some
guarantee to assure that people were not turned away, as he had been the

previous year. Ed Damon advised that people putting the project together

in prior years had recommended that they increase the volume capacity to

allow people to have the hazardous waste taken away. Sandra Brodeur

advised that the Town would like to try for one more year to get more
people coming. If it failed seriously after another year, then to consider

not doing the Hazardous Waste Collection Program again. Larry Bird

wanted to know if crank case oil could be brought to the program, and Ed
Damon advised that arrangements have been made to take the crank case

oil elsewhere, but it was not suggested to bring the oil to the program.

The article passed.

Douglas Supry made motion to reconsider Article 1 to finalize election

of the officials of the town. Rick Trombly explained that he inadvertently

overlooked the offices of official weighers, surveyors of wood and lumber,

and fence viewers. Ken Marshall seconded the motion. The article was
passed.

ARTICLE 12: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a

sum not to exceed four hundred sixty dollars ($460.00) as Boscawen's

share of the updating of the Solid Waste Management Plan of the Central

New Hampshire Solid Waste District.

Thomas Danko moved that the article be adopted as printed; James
Colby seconded the motion. There being no discussion, the motion was

passed unanimously.

ARTICLE 13: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a

sum not to exceed two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) for the purpose of

Town beautification.

Douglas Supry moved that the motion be accepted; Joy Sloane

seconded the motion. There being no discussion, the article was passed.

ARTICLE 14: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen

to negotiate an agreement to acquire ten ± (10) acres of land adjacent to

the landfill to be used in conjunction with the transfer station at a cost not

to exceed forty thousand dollars ($40,000.00). Money to be taken from the

transfer station bond. (2/3 ballot vote).

Moderator Rick Trombly advised that the vote on Article 14 needed a

2/3 majority vote in order to pass. There were 271 people having voted,

and 180 people in the affirmative were needed to pass the vote, the results

being 172 in the affirmative and 99 in the negative, thereby defeating the

article.

John Dominic made motion to reconsider Article 14 and was advised by
Moderator Rick Trombly that in order to reconsider the vote, Mr.

Dominic would have to have voted on the prevailing side, which Mr.
Dominic responded he had. Claudia Damon seconded the motion.

Moderator Rick Trombly also advised that discussion could only relate to

the matter of reconsideration. There being no further discussion, the

motion was voted on and defeated.

ARTICLE 15: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of
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Selectmen on behalf of the Town, to enact ordinances concerning the

supervision and regulation of the collection, transportation, delivery, and
disposition of all or part of any solid waste generated within the Town so

that the same is delivered to a designated resource recovery facility or

such other facilities as may be designated by the Town for processing or

for other disposition or handling.

Sandra Brodeur moved that the article be accepted. Larry Bird

seconded the motion. Joy Sloane wanted to know what the Town would
mean by "regulate," if it meant that everything was going to have to be

separated. Sandra Brodeur explained that the Town was already

empowered to regulate how things would be done at the resource collec-

tion facility, and that the article is just to prove to the State that the Town
has been made aware of this fact and to make the Town aware that they

may have to separate the trash into different containers for recycling, and
how it must be brought to the landfill— not that it has to be brought to the

landfill, but how it must be brought. Sandra Brodeur also explained that

the language is what the State recommended the Town use for state fund-

ing or assistance in the future for solid waste management. She explained

that if trash were separated for recycling, it would lower the cost of ship-

ping ash to a landfill thereby reducing the cost to the Town. Douglas

Supry explained that the solid waste cooperative spent in excess of three

million dollars ($3,000,000.00) to purchase a landfill in Franklin to

handle the ash that is being generated, which is paid for by the ton. There
being no further discussion, the article was passed.

ARTICLE 16: To see if the Town will vote pursuant to RSA 674 to

adopt the 1988 Life Safety Code in ordinance form for its administration.

Said ordinance would repeal the 1981 Life Safety Code as adopted at

Boscawen Town Meeting, March 10, 1981. The full text of said ordinance

is on file with the Town Clerk and will be available at Town Meeting.

Douglas Supry made a motion to accept article as printed. Allan

Destephano seconded the motion. Discussion: Roland "Joe" Bartlett

advised that the Life Safety Code officer was using the 1981 Life Safety

Code and should be brought up to par with the Fire Marshall's Office.

Wayne Morse wanted to know what the job of Life Safety Code Officer is.

Douglas Supry advised that the job requires interpreting and enforcing

the Code and that the Life Safety Code would not affect single family

homes. Pat Lemay wanted to know that if buildings were being con-

structed on her own property, would there be three or four different

agencies having to be involved. Sandra Brodeur reiterated that it really

did not apply for single family homes and that it was more for the protec-

tion of multiple family dwellings. Wayne Morse wanted to know that if

an addition was being added to a store, for example, then the rest of the

building would have to come up to the new 1988 Code. Douglas Supry

advised that it was a Code that was slightly more lenient than the present

Code, for example— a large enough window could be used as a means of

egress instead of installing a second door. David Nickerson made a motion

to move the question and cut off debate. Fred McLaughlin seconded the

motion. The motion was voted on and passed unanimously.

Moderator Rick Trombly advised that the motion on the floor was to

accept Article 16 as printed. The motion was voted on and passed.
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ARTICLE 17: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Conserva-

tion Commission to negotiate for and acquire in the name of the Town
suitable parcels of land adjoining the Town Forest and to direct that such

parcels so acquired by designated as part of the Town Forest, subject to

the approval of the Selectmen. Funds in the Town Forest management
fund may be used for this purpose and may be contributed in connection

with such acquisitions to the local matching portion required for acquir-

ing conservation land or interests in land and other costs associated

therewith for permanent conservation use under the N.H. Land Invest-

ment Program (LCIP), RS 22I-A. If the income from the Town Forest

exceeds four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) in any fiscal year, commencing
with the 1989 fiscal year, the Conservation Commission shall recommend
to the Selectmen whether such excess over four thousand dollars

($4,000.00) is necessary for the expansion or maintenance of the Town
Forest or other conservation uses and the Selectmen shall determine

whether such excess over four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) shall be (I)

retained in the Town Forest Management Fund for expansion or

maintenance of the Town Forest, (II) placed in a conservation fund

established under Town Forest, (III) placed in a conservation fund

established under RSA 36-A for the proper utilization and protection of

the natural resources of the Town, including the acquisition of land and

rights inland, and from which funds may be contributed to the local

matching portion and other costs associated with the LCIP or (IV)

returned to the general fund.

Ron Butler moved that Article 17 be accepted as read. Charles Niebling

seconded the motion. Ron Butler moved to amend the article to strike

Roman numeral II which reads "placed in a conservation fund established

under Town Forest," and to renumber the following Roman numerals.

James Colby seconded the motion. Discussion: Becky Gauthier wanted
clarification of the amendment. Ronald Butler explained that it was a

printing error. Robert Carey wanted to know where the land was that

was being discussed. There being no further discussion, the amendment
was voted on and passed unanimously.

Ed Damon advised that the Town Forest was a parcel of land located

near the proposed development and that a possible acquisition of approx-

imately 20 acres, and possibly more in the future, was still being discussed

because of the access it would supply to the Town Forest. Income over

four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) per year from the Town Forest from
cutting timber would go into a fund relating to land conservation. Joan

suggested that the article be further amended to strike out

Roman numeral III which read "returned to the general fund," so as to

possibly purchase land in the future for future generations. The motion

was seconded by Steven Hollins. Sandra Brodeur explained that it was
several years ago that the decision was made by the Town to keep the

Roman numeral III as an option. James Colby advised that the money
that was being asked for would not cut taxes more than 10 percent. The
motion was then voted on, and was passed to strike Roman numeral III

from the article. Motion to accept the article as amended was voted on
and the article passed as amended.
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ARTICLE 18: To see if the Town will vote to empower the Selectmen

to borrow such sums of money as may be necessary to meet current

expenses of the Town until the taxes are paid to the Treasurer.

Richard Sweatt made a motion to accept the article as printed. Douglas

Supry seconded the motion. Discussion: Richard Sweatt moved to amend
that taxes be billed two times per year and, therefore, reduce the amount

of money that would have to be borrowed. Phyllis Hewey explained that

it would cost a great deal more to bill twice per year. Moderator Rick

Trombly advised that the amendment would change the intent of the

article and was, therefore, not able to be discussed at that time as it had

not been sufficiently warned. Moderator Trombly advised that Richard

Sweatt could appeal the ruling if he so desired. Moderator Trombly ruled

that the amendment offered by Richard Sweatt was not sufficiently

warned and changes the intent of the article. The ruling was voted on and

accepted.

Douglas Supry moved Article 18 be accepted as written. Claire Clarke

seconded the motion. Richard Sweatt asked how to change the once per

year tax billing to twice per year tax billing and was advised by

Moderator Trombly that the Selectmen have the authority to do that.

Douglas Supry advised that an assessment had been done and the cost

would increase considerably to be billed twice per year. Phyllis Hewey
explained that other towns which do bill twice per year were now
regretting that decision because of the extra work, time, and money.

There being no further discussion, the article was passed.

ARTICLE 19: To see if the Town will vote to give the Selectmen

authority to transfer or sell property taken by the Town in default of

Redemption from the Tax Sale or otherwise acquired and such sale to be

at public auction with the Selectmen reserving the right to accept or reject

any or all bids.

Sandra Rrodeur moved the motion be accepted as printed. Larry Bird

seconded the motion. There being no discussion, the article was passed

unanimously.

ARTICLE 20: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen

to make application for and to accept and to expend on behalf of the

Town any and all advances, grants, or other funds for Town purposes

which may now or hereinafter be forthcoming from the U.S.A. or the

State of New Hampshire or any Federal or State agency.

Douglas Supry moved that the article be accepted as printed; Claire

Clarke seconded the motion. There being no discussion, the article passed

unanimously.

ARTICLE 21: To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Selectmen

to accept and to expend on behalf of the Town private gifts and contribu-

tions for Town purposes.

Larry Bird moved that the article be accepted as printed; Allan

Destephano seconded the motion. Discussion: Steve Hollins wanted an

explanation as to what gifts and what contributions. Douglas Supry

explained that if a person wanted to make a gift, such as James Colby had

done with the lumber, to the Town, then the Selectmen could accept it on

behalf of the Town. There being no further discussion, the article passed

unanimously.
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ARTICLE 22: To transact any other business which may legally come

before this meeting.

Thomas Danko made an announcement that people 62 or older would

be eligible to pick up surplus foods available without charge from noon to

3:00 p.m. on March 15 and 16, 1989.

WiUiam Harmon reminded people that on March 28, 1989, at 7:30

p.m. , there would be a w ater precinct meeting and that it would affect all

of the tax payers whether or not the tax payers lived within the water

precinct. William Harmon suggested that all the tax payers go to the

meeting, and reminded the Town that there was a Zoning Board meeting

on March 30, 1989 to discuss the project beind done by E.K. Associates.

Steven HoUins suggested the Town send out flyers to make people

aware of these meetings and where they would be held.

William Harmon suggested the possibility of placing a vote that it is the

intent of the tax payers to make known to the water precinct that the tax

payers do not want to pay for their project of extending the right of way
approximately 7000 feet and that it should be paid for by the developer.

Moderator Rick Trombly advised that the vote would be non-binding.

William Harmon moved that a vote be taken as to the consensus of the

Town that the Town does not pay for the water precinct or pay for the

expenses of extending the right of way. Larry Bird seconded the motion.

Sandra Brodeur suggested that the tax payers go to the water precinct

meeting to register their intent. There being no further discussion, the

motion was passed.

James Colby suggested retaining the forty thousand dollars

($40,000.00) mentioned in Article 14 for the possibility of a possible

leaching problem. Douglas Supry advised that the money had already

been appropriated, that the Selectmen were only asking to transfer the

money for that purpose. Moderator Trombly advised that he would not

allow such debate as the motion for reconsideration had been defeated.

The money would be rolled over and used to pay the bond issue money.

Tammy Pepler moved that Article 2 be reconsidered. Robert Carey

seconded the motion. Discussion: Tammy Pepler asked how that would

affect the police department's budget and the police chiefs raise. Mickey

Cummings asked why the Town trained new police officers only to have

them leave shortly after. Mark Pepler advised that the officers can go to

another precinct and get a higher salary even at a lower position. Douglas

Supry advised that Article 2 had been discussed and voted on and that

further discussion is moot at this point. William Murphy said that when
the taxes increase, the tax payers raise goes down.

Douglas Supry advised that the Town has received requests for new
Town Clerk hours. Starting in April, the Town Clerk's Office would be

open from 8:30 a.m. to 12:30 noon and from 2:00 to 6:00 p.m. on the

second and fourth Wednesdays of the month. He also advised that this

would be under a three month trial period.

Moderator Rick Trombly moved adjournment of the meeting at 11:00

p.m. Douglas Supry seconded the motion.

Respectfully submitted,

Barbara M. Holmes
Boscawen Town Clerk
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ZONING OFFICER'S REPORT

The past year has been comparable to surrounding towns as growth

and building has slowed. The Lake Forest Country Club off Queen Street

is at a standstill as litigation is before the court concerning Special Excep-

tions granted by the Zoning Board.

BUILDING PERMITS APPROVED

Residential

Homes 6 Garages 5 Barns & Sheds 9 Additions 28

Commercial

Additions 6

Mobile Homes

New 5 Replacements 1 Additions 5

Subdivisions

Minor 6 Major 1 Lot Line Adjustments 4

Miscellaneous

10

Robert P. Knowlton
Zoning Officer
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PENACOOK & BOSCAWEN WATER PRECINCT

WARRANT FOR ANNUAL MEETING

To the inhabitants of Penacook-Boscawen Water Precinct in the

County of Merrimack and the State of New Hampshire, qualified to vote

in Precinct affairs.

You are hereby notified to meet at the Boscawen Town Hall in

Boscawen in said Precinct on the 27th day of March, 1990 at 7:30 o'clock

in the evening, to act upon the following subjects:

1. To choose all necessary Precinct officers for the ensuing year.

2. To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$2,800,000 for the construction, original equipping and engineering

of a new Water Filtration Plant, and to authorize the issuance of not

more than $2,800,000 of bonds or notes in accordance with the pro-

visions of the Municipal Finance Act (RSA Chapter 33) and to

authorize the Precinct officers to issue and negotiate such bonds or

notes and to determine the rate of interest thereon. (2/3 Ballot Vote
Required)

3. To hear the reports of the Precinct officers and pass any vote relating

thereto.

4. To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the amounts
listed in the budget for 1990.

5. To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$53,000 for the purchase of land adjacent to Walker Pond, for the

protection of the water supply. Said land is now owned by Fred W.
Courser.

6. To see if the Precinct will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of

$250,000 to buy and install water meters in the consumer's homes
and businesses in the Precinct.

7. To authorize the Precinct Commissioners to borrow money in

anticipation of Precinct Taxes and other revenues for the year and to

issue notes therefor at such time within one year and at such place as

the Precinct Commissioners shall determine.

8. To see if the Precinct will vote to give the Commissioners authority

to transfer any unexpended balances of money from one appropria-
tion to another.

9. To transact any other business which may legally come before the

meeting.

Given under our hands and seal the 14th day of February, 1990.

James Hewey, Sr.

Charles Scheys

Everett Blaise

A true copy of Warrant: Attest

James Hewey, Sr.

Charles Scheys

Everett Blaise
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PENACOOK-BOSCAWEN WATER PRECINCT
1990 BUDGET

Actual Commissioners
Expenditures Budget

Prior Year Current Year

Superintendent's Salary

Clerical Salary

Commissioners Salary

Pumping Station Labor
Pumping Station Supplies & Exps.

Purification Supplies & Exps.

Propane & Fuel

Power Purchased

Telephone
Distribution Labor
Distribution Supplies & Exps.

Repairs to Mains
Repairs to Services

Repairs to Hydrants

Repairs to Meters

Commercial Supplies & Exps.

Payroll Expenses

Property Taxes

Legal & Audit

Insurance

Truck & Equipment Exps.

Group Insurance

Repairs to Structures

Repairs to Water Storage

New Mains to Replacement
of Old Mains

New Services

Hydrants & Meters

Engineering

Surveying

Capital Outlay:

Construction - River Crossing

Engineering Water Treatment Plant

Principal of Debt
Interest on Debt

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS
OR EXPENDITURES

1 15,967.70

5,999.88

3,000.00

6,139.07

1,083.49

7,425.00

1,101.56

11,892.16

1,406.15

4,989.28

783.63

3,806.24

3,890.92

1,767.00
-0-

2,858.19

4,714.29

957.22

5,882.59

6,214.00

3,057.19

5,700.00

67.49
-0-

-0-

574.10

1,012.72

1,055.83
-0-

15,000

115,000.00

17,500.00

4,381.59

$ 17,250.00

6,850.00

3,000.00

6,500.00

1,500.00

8,000.00

2,000.00

14,500.00

1,900.00

8,000.00

1,000.00

5,500.00

4,000.00

3,000.00

35.00

3,500.00

6,500.00

1,500.00

8,000.00

7,500.00

3,500.00

7,000.00

400.00

1,000.00

6,500.00

1,000.00

2,500.00

5,000.00

10,000.00

-0-

-0-

17,500.00

3,490.13

$253,227.29 $167,925.13
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PENACOOK-BOSCAWEN WATER PRECINCT
COMMISSIONERS' REPORT

Roy F. Weston Incorporated, Engineering Firm, engaged by the Water
Precinct to do the preliminary engineering, relative to the Water Treat-

ment Plant, have been moving ahead quite rapidly, having accomplished

the site surveys, soil analysis and the most efficient treatment techniques.

They have presented a preliminary set of floor plans that we have
reviewed and revised. They are hoping to have the plans on the Water
Treatment Plant finalized early in the spring, so they could go out for bid.

We and Andy Sharpe, the engineer of the project, have been
investigating to see if any outside funding is available.

We would like to openly thank Mr. Robert Collins, Sr., and Mr. Ray
Carlson, for all their time and energ\-, they put into condensing the new
RSA Laws, pertaining to the Precinct, into a booklet.

Respectfully submitted,

James Hewey, Sr.

Charles Scheys

Everett Blaise

WATER COMMISSIONERS
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PENACOOK AND BOSCAWEN WATER PRECINCT
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 1989 and 1988

1989 1988

$201,824

11,529

3,414

4,378

350
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

Vachon, Clukay & Co., P.C.

Certified Public Accountants

131 Middle Street

Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Board of Commissioners

Fenacook and Boscawen Water Precinct

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Penacook and
Boscawen Water Precinct as of December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the

related statements of income and retained earnings, and cash flows for the

years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of

Precinct Officials. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the finan-

cial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes

examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by manage-
ment, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly

in all material respects the financial position of the Penacook and
Boscawen Water Precinct as of December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the

results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in con-

formity with generally accepted accounting principles.

Vachon, Clukay & Co., P.C.

January 27, 1990
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
ON ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Vachon, Clukay & Co., P.C.

Certified Public Accountants

131 Middle Street

Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Board of Commissioners
Penacook and Boscawen Water Precinct

Our report on our audit of the basic financial statements of the

Penacook and Boscawen Water Precinct for 1989 and 1988 appears on the

first page of these financial statements. That audit was made for the pur-

pose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a

whole. The schedule of budgetary expenses is presented for additional

analysis and is not a rquired part of the basic financial statements of the

Penacook and Boscawen Water Precinct. The schedule of budgetary
expenses is presented in accordance with the requirements of the New
Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration which differ from
generally accepted accounting principles. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic

financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material

respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Vachon, Clukay & Co., P.C.

January 27, 1990
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PENACOOK AND BOSCAWEN WATER PRECINCT
STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Years Ended December 31, 1989 and 1988

1989 1988

OPERATING REVENUES:
Rental income
Metered income
Taxes

Miscellaneous income

OPERATING EXPENSES

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest expense

NET INCOME

RETAINED EARNINGS, beginning of

year (Restated Note 5)

RETAINED EARNINGS, end of year

See notes to financial statements

$ 75,897

17,821

190,867

1,228
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PENACOOK AND BOSCAWEN WATER PRECINCT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31, 1989 and 1988

1989 1988

CASH WAS PROVIDED BY (USED FOR):
OPERATIONS:

Net income $154,974 $ 33,706

Noncash items included in net income
Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in receivables

(Increase) decrease in

prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Total cash provided by operations

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Retirement of long-term debt

Contributions in aid of construction

Total cash used in financing activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to utility plant in service

TOTAL INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH, beginning of year

CASH, end of year

See notes to financial statements

26,153

(6,894)
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PENACOOK AND BOSCAWEN WATER PRECINCT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 1989 and 1988

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Penacook and Boscawen Water Precinct

(the Precinct) conform to generally accepted accounting principles as

applicable to governments which operate utilities that are financed and
accounted for in a manner similar to private business enterprises, except

as indicated.

Basis oj Accounting
The Precinct's financial statements have been prepared on the accrual

basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are

recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when they are

incurred. Estimated amounts have not been recorded for services

rendered but not billed as of the close of the year as required by generally

accepted accounting principles. Interest on General Obligation Debt is

recognized when due rather than when incurred in accordance with State

requirements. The Precinct believes that the effects of these departures

are immaterial to these financial statements.

Utility Plant in Service and Depreciation

Utility plant in service is stated at cost. Depreciation is provided over the

estimated useful lives of the various components using the straight-line

method. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Years

Building and Structures 40
Standpipes 30

Mains, Hydrants and Services 30-50

Other Equipment 5-20

Although still in use, fully depreciated assets are removed from the

accounts. Depreciation expense was $26,153 in 1989 and $25,178 in 1988.

Inventory of Materials

Inventories of materials consist of water system materials and supplies

and are valued at cost.

Cash
The Precinct's cash at December 31, 1989 consists of deposits with a book
balance of $201,824 and a bank balance of $36,073. The bank balance is

fully insured by federal depository insurance.

NOTE 2 — UTILITY PLANT IN SERVICE
A summary of utilitv plant in service component balances at December
31, 1989 and 1988 is as follows:

1989 1988
Water Supply Land $ 16,967 $ 16,967
Water Supply Structure 3,592 3,592
Pumping Station Structure 57,390 57,390
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Water Storage Structure
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NOTE 4 — PROPERTY TAXES
The Precinct is empowered by State law to raise taxes based upon the

valuations of real property located within its boundaries. The property

taxes are collected by the municipal governments of Boscawen and Con-
cord. In 1989 tax levies from Boscawen and Concord were $174,404 and
$10,088 respectively.

NOTE 5 — RESTATEMENT
During the year an accounting error was discovered. Retained earnings at

January 1, 1988 has been restated by $2,034 to give retroactive effect to

correction of the error.
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PENACOOK AND BOSCAWEN WATER PRECINCT
SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY EXPENSES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended December 31, 1989






